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1. WHO WE ARE
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is one of London’s largest
and busiest teaching hospitals. We have a reputation for providing
excellent local healthcare in the London Boroughs of Lambeth, Southwark
and Lewisham, and a range of specialist services for patients across South
East England and beyond.
We are recognised nationally and internationally for our work in liver
disease and transplantation, neurosciences, cardiac services, blood
cancers and fetal medicine, and play a key role in the training and
education of medical, nursing and dental students.
King’s works closely with other healthcare organisations, such as local
Primary Care Trusts We also have strong academic links with the King’s
College London School of Medicine and Dental Institute, and the Institute
of Psychiatry.
We are part of King’s Health Partners Academic Health Sciences Centre
(AHSC), a pioneering collaboration between King’s College London, and
Guy’s and St Thomas’, King’s College Hospital and South London and
Maudsley NHS Foundation Trusts.
King’s Health Partners is one of only five accredited AHSCs in the UK and
brings together an unrivalled range and depth of clinical and research
expertise, spanning both physical and mental health. Our combined
strengths will drive improvements in care for patients, allowing them to
benefit from breakthroughs in medical science and receive leading edge
treatment at the earliest possible opportunity.
For more information, visit www.kingshealthpartners.org
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2. CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
We are celebrating another year of excellent operational and financial
performance where our success has been recognised with a series of high
profile visits from the Prime Minister, the Secretary of State for Health and
other Health Ministers as well as our accreditation as part of the AHSC
(King’s Health Partners). Our success stems from the hard work of our
6,000 staff who help us continue to deliver world class care to all our
patients and are ably supported by our contractors and volunteers, that
make up the family that is King’s.
Board of Governors changes
We have continued to work closely with our Board of Governors and
Foundation Trust members. New elections late in 2008 resulted in some
new Governors who I am delighted to welcome to the Trust (see pages 60
– 61 for details). I would like to thank all Governors for the time and
effort that they commit to King’s. We held another series of community
events for our members to give them the chance to ask our staff,
Directors and their elected Governors any questions about the operations
of the hospital and its future direction. We have also been working to
increase the numbers of younger members we have, by forming closer
ties to local further and higher education in our community.
Emergency Department Redevelopment
Last year saw an extensive consultation exercise about the future
redevelopment of our Emergency department carried out with our two
local PCTs and South London and Maudsley NHS FT. We spent a good
deal of time talking to patients and carers who use the department about
how they would like to see the facilities improved before involving
architects to draw up plans for formal consultation, which took place
between January and April 2009. The results of the consultation will help
form final plans for the redevelopment, which is also looking to the future
by increasing the number of beds available for major trauma and stroke
patients. Lord Darzi’s Healthcare for London review proposes the
refocusing of stroke and trauma services across London into a few major
centres. King’s has been designated as a centre for major trauma and
hyper acute stroke care and this reflects the good work of our staff and
volunteers at Kings.
Board of Directors Changes
After steering our ship so successfully as Acting Chief Executive for a large
portion of last year, Dame Jacqueline Docherty, our Director of Nursing
and Operations, was unsurprisingly head hunted to the post of Chief
Executive at West Middlesex Hospital NHS Trust. Jacqueline had been at
King’s for 13 years and her strong operational focus and nursing
management skills will be sorely missed.
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I am pleased to say that a new Director of Nursing, Dr Geraldine Walters,
will be joining King’s in September 2009 from St George’s Healthcare NHS
Trust.
Mike Griffin, our HR Director was also recruited by Imperial Healthcare
NHS Trust as their new HR Director. I am delighted to report that we have
appointed Angela Huxham, latterly from Cambridge University Hospitals
NHS FT, as Mike’s successor, and she joined us in early May. Roland
Sinker, Joint Strategy Director was seconded to the Academic Health
Sciences Centre during the course of the year where he has been Interim
Strategy and Programme Director. He has recently been appointed as
Director of Operations and we look forward to his return to King’s.
During this challenging time for the Board, the following staff members
have done an excellent job in stepping up to fill our vacant Directors posts
on a temporary basis. Zoe Lelliott has been Acting Director of Strategy,
Marion Lorman Acting Director of Human Resources, Paula Townsend
Acting Director of Nursing and John Watson Acting Director of Operations.
Last, but by no means least, I am delighted to welcome Tim Smart as our
new Chief Executive. Tim joined us in November from the private sector,
and we are already benefiting from his knowledge and expertise in many
areas.

Michael Parker
Chairman
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3. CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
This is my first statement as Chief Executive at King’s. I have now been
here since November last year and, every day, I reflect on what a
privilege it is to be involved in helping improve the lives of so many
patients and their families.
When I arrived, one of the first things I was made aware of was a daytime
TV series called “Hospital Heroes” set at King’s, based in the Emergency
Department. Twenty daily episodes saw different stories unfold about the
patients we treat and the staff who treat them. As an introduction to
King’s it was pretty impressive, and as I got to know the Hospital and its
people better that theme continued. Many organisations will state that
their organisations are only as good as their people, but it can rarely be so
true as in the ultimate service industry of hospital care. I have been
impressed and inspired by our staff and the culture of King’s and I am
pleased that this report will celebrate some of the unsung heroes that
have helped make this organisation as successful as it is today.
2008 was a momentous year for us. Our financial and operational
performance last year were both excellent. We reported a surplus of
£15.7 million – £3 million above plan - and we reached the best possible
financial risk rating of 5. We have met all national targets, including the
challenging 18 week referral to treatment, Accident & Emergency 4 hour
waits and infection control, where we recorded a 40 percent reduction in
cases of C-Difficile.
One of the highlights of the year was our accreditation as an Academic
Health Sciences Centre, along with our partners King’s College London and
Guy’s & St Thomas’ and South London and Maudsley FTs. King’s Health
Partners, as the AHSC has been named, was one of just five centres
accredited by the Department of Health – two more in London (led by
Imperial and University College London), Cambridge and Manchester. The
AHSC is a very significant development for us, and will enable us to
deliver even better patient outcomes in the future.
During the course of last year there were two separate consultation
exercises about the future of the NHS in London. A Picture of Health
focussed on the South East of London and made recommendations about
how services at our local district general hospitals should be arranged in
the future to the benefit of patients in the area. This has resulted in the
creation of one large Trust, South London Healthcare NHS Trust, made up
of Bromley, Queen Elizabeth Hospital Woolwich and Queen Mary’s Sidcup
hospitals. There are already plans in place to reorganise services within
these hospitals, and we look forward to playing our part in helping
establish the best mix of patient care for all our local patients. It is likely
that University Hospital Lewisham, the fourth of the outer south east
London trusts will forge greater links and working relationships with
ourselves and Guys and St Thomas’ in the future, and we are already
using some wards there for our patients.
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Healthcare for London has been consulting about the provision of trauma
and stroke services across the capital. As we go to press with this
Review, the recommendations have designated King’s as both a major
trauma centre and as a hyper acute stroke centre, in recognition of our
excellent record with stroke care.
This review covers a year of success for King’s, but I believe we can and
will do even better, especially as we, like all organisations, will face
challenges caused by recession. Our success relies on the quality of the
care we provide for our patients, and we will be focussing on improving
quality across the board in 2009 and I will be reporting back on those
improvements next year.

Tim Smart
Chief Executive
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4. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
4.1

Financial Review

For the third year in a row, we are pleased to report that King’s had its
most successful financial year ever. For the year we made a surplus of
£17.5m before exceptional items, an improvement of £5m compared to
2007/08. This was also some £5m ahead of the originally planned figure.
After final discussions with the District Valuer, the interim revaluation of
the Trust’s land and buildings resulted in an impairment of £1.786m. The
impairment for completed capital projects was £1.752m and the economic
impairment for land was £0.034m. These impairments are considered
exceptional items when calculating Monitor risk ratings. This left an overall
retained surplus of £15.661m.
Full year
Income:
Expenditure:
Operating surplus:
Net Financing costs:
Public dividends:
Surplus:

(£000)
517,518
(492,726)
24,792
(391)
(8,740)
15,661

The improved surplus was matched by a significant improvement in the
overall liquidity position of the Trust. The Trust has been able to move
into a position where there was no requirement to access its short-term
working capital facility. (The Trust has in place a £25m working capital
facility, to protect it from the effects of any short-term fluctuations in cash
flow). The combined effect of the improved surplus and liquidity has
resulted in the Trust achieving a year end financial risk rating of 5 using
the Monitor system, the highest possible rating.
Value for money and improved efficiency
In recent years, significant effort has been put into implementing service
line management and a performance management framework across the
Trust. Staff down to team level are incentivised to manage and improve
their own performance. This has meant that divisions have been able to
deliver increased activity levels at a lower unit cost. Performance is peer
reviewed as well considered regularly by the Executive and the Board
Performance Committee.
Trading environment and financial risks
As last year, the main influence on the level of trading during the year
has been the additional activity required to meet the national waiting time
targets relating to a maximum treatment time from first referral of 18
weeks. In addition, the Trust has seen unprecedented levels of
emergency attendances through the Emergency Department. Looking
ahead, the economic downturn means that there is likely to be increased
pressure on NHS income streams and therefore, an increased necessity to
ensure that patients receive the most appropriate treatment in the most
appropriate setting.
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In consultation with the Governors, the Board has established a financial
and estates strategy to reinvest cash generated from surpluses to improve
the overall quality of the Denmark Hill campus and to provide modern
state-of-the art facilities and equipment. This strategy will be refined in
the first quarter of 2009/10 to support the newly developed clinical
services strategy and, in particular, to support developments associated
with the King’s Health Partners Academic Health Sciences Centre
For 2009-10 the Board has set a target surplus of £9.5m. Demand for
services is expected to be largely unchanged with growth in a number of
specialty services. However, reductions in the amount the Trust receives
for compensating for the higher costs of operating in London (down by a
total of £15 m in 2009/10) means that a reduced level of surplus is
expected. Due to reductions in the level of national research funding and
the need to expand capacity to sustain current activity levels, this will
require a cost improvement programme of 5%.
Non-clinical activities
KCH Commercial Services Limited, the company established to oversee
our commercial operations has now been operation for 2 years. During
that time, the first of the operating companies, Agnentis Limited, has
continued to grow. It has expanded its product range to include a range of
software solutions specially configured for use in the NHS.
Changes to accounting policies
The Trust is in the process of moving to adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards. This will be completed in 2009/10. The recent
volatility in commercial land values means that it is difficult to assess the
current relationship between the market value of land and its current
holding value. The Board believes, however, that there is no significant
difference between the balance sheet value and the long term market
value of land.
External audit services
At its meeting on 6 May 2008, the Board of Governors resolved to appoint
the Audit Commission as the Trust’s external auditors for a further period
of three years. The Trust incurred £81,500 in audit services fees (£75,000
plus VAT) in relation to the statutory audit for the year to 31 March 2009.
Non-audit services were also incurred in supporting fraud awareness
costing £2,500, and a Board effectiveness review costing £17,625.
So far as the Trust’s directors are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware. The Trust’s directors have
taken all of the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order
to make themselves aware of any audit information and to establish that
the auditors are aware of that information.
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that
the NHS Foundation Trust has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
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Borrowing and capital plans
Monitor set a prudential borrowing limit for the Trust of £98m. Part of this
limit (£13m) is taken up by the pre-existing Finance Lease for the
refurbishment of the Ruskin Wing, which is treated as borrowing for the
purposes of the limit. The Trust undertook further borrowing in the year to
part finance a scheme to replace the Trust’s outdated energy system with
a modern, efficient combined heat and power plant. The Trust has a
number of other developments planned over the next few years, many
funded by capital grants or charitable donations, including:
•
•
•
•
•

Improvements to the Emergency Department
Developments to support extended Trauma services
A clinical research facility
Improved Fetal Medicine facilities in conjunction with the Fetal
Medicine Foundation
An academic neurosciences centre.

The aim of these schemes is to enhance the capacity of the Trust for
research and academic activities related to our tertiary specialities and,
also, complement the facilities available in our partner organisations in the
Academic Health Sciences Centre.
We will continue with our policy of maintaining our asset base by
committing capital expenditure on existing assets at a level broadly
consistent with their rate of depreciation. In the longer term, the Trust is
planning to make further investments in the areas of ambulatory care,
day surgery and minimally invasive surgery as well as expanding its
critical care facilities.
The change to IFRS accounting policies means that a number of items,
most notably the Golden Jubilee Wing PFI development, will be reclassified
as finance leases. This will mean that the Trust’s PBL will be taken up by
this past expenditure. Monitor is addressing this issue by making available
Tier 2 borrowing for Trust’s with large PFI schemes.
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4.2 Operating and Performance Review
2008/09 will be the first year of review by the newly formed Care Quality
Commission, replacing the Healthcare Commission. All NHS Trusts will be
awarded a Quality of Care rating of Excellent, Good, Fair or weak, based
on performance against:
Core Standards and Existing Commitments: is the trust getting
the basics of healthcare right - in other words, is it meeting the
Government's core standards and existing commitments for the NHS.
National Priorities: as well as getting the basics right, is the trust
making and sustaining ongoing improvements in its services. This is
judged by performance against the Government's new national
priorities for the NHS.
The Trust ratings for 2008/09 will be published in October 2009. We are
confident that we will deliver an “Excellent” or “Good” rating. We have full
compliance with all the national core standards, signed off by our Board of
Directors. In addition to this we are confident in our performance against
the existing commitments and new national priorities set by the Care
Quality Commission.
In addition to this we expect that following our successful financial
performance in 2008/09 detailed earlier in this report that our use of
resources rating will be “excellent”.
Key Performance Highlights in 2008/09
Despite an increase of 15% in GP referrals throughout 2008/09 and an
unprecedented demand on our emergency services in the winter months
we were still successful in delivering against the key national and local
targets for A&E, 18 week referral to treatment, infection control and
cancer waits. In addition to this we improved significantly on reducing
Trust wide sickness and absence rates.
Accident & Emergency ‘4 hour wait’
Despite the unprecedented demands on our Type 1 A&E services
(emergency department) through the winter months, the Trust achieved a
full year performance above the 98% target, one of only 6 Trust in London
able to report this. The national average was 97.5% compared to the
Trust performance of 98.06%.
The Trust’s overall performance against the ‘4 hour wait’ target for all A&E
type services was 98.39%. This incorporates the emergency dental walk
in service, which achieved 100% performance against the 4 hour wait
target.
Achieving 18 weeks
King’s delivered the Department of Health’s April – December 2008
targets in respect to 18 weeks from referral to treatment with a month on
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month achievement above the target of 85% of admitted patients and
above the target of 90% of non-admitted patients receiving treatment
within this timescale.
In the last quarter of the year the targets increased to 90% for admitted
and 95% for non-admitted and the Trust stepped up and delivered against
the monthly requirement to achieve these.
This achievement was the result of the Trust making changes to a number
of patient pathways and undertaking a significant amount of additional
planned procedures. Many cases previously treated through day surgery
are now treated in outpatients. More treatment is being delivered in the
day surgery unit avoiding the need to admit patients overnight or longer.
Finally, the length of time that patients stay in the hospital is also falling.
These improvements reduce patients’ risk of acquiring hospital infection
and ensure that they return home to familiar surroundings more quickly.
In order to achieve these increases in patients treated, whilst reducing
their length of stay, staff have worked on evenings and at weekends. A
number of patients have also been treated at independent centres.
This all led to an 8% increase in elective inpatient activity, a 7% increase
in day case activity and an 11% rise in outpatient activity.
Infection Control
In 2007/08 we saw a 44% reduction in our MRSA bacteraemia rates and
the challenge for the Trust was to maintain this in 2008/09 and deliver
against our national expected limit of 43 cases. In 2008/09 we reported
39 cases of MRSA bacteraemia and thus achieved against the national
expectation.
In addition to this we delivered ahead of our requirements in reducing
levels of C-Difficile cases. We reported 199 cases in 2008/09, a reduction
of 44% a well ahead of our national expected limit of 242 cases. The
most notable improvement was from the medical division, reducing to 60
cases from 143 in the previous year, a 58% improvement.
Challenges for 2008/09
The most significant challenges in 2009/10 will be:
•
•
•
•

continue to deliver A&E ‘4 hour wait’ performance
reduce infection rates
continue to deliver the 18 week referral to treatment targets
reduce length of stay to create capacity for increasing
demands on our services

The performance framework at the Trust will develop to include the Darzi
vision of quality accounts, enabling us to have a stronger focus on the
quality of care for our patients.
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4.2.1

Commercial Services

KCH Commercial Services is developing a number of new commercial
initiatives and is sharing its experience and expertise with other NHS
providers.
Blood sciences laboratory
KingsPath, our clinical diagnostic pathology service, unveiled a vision for
the future when Ben Bradshaw, Minister of State for Health Services,
opened the new blood sciences laboratory in November 2007.
The laboratory is one of the most advanced automated pathology units in
Europe and is capable of processing more than 12,000 samples a day,
thanks to the KingsPath team’s success in integrating routine
haematology, biochemistry, immunology and virology investigations and
antibiotic assays.
The laboratory is now offering its services to other healthcare institutions
to allow them to have the benefits of the most advanced technical
developments without the need for large capital investment.
Agnentis
Agnentis is a subsidiary of KCH Commercial Services Limited, which was
established by King’s College Hospital after we became a Foundation Trust
in 2006. The company invests in, and develops, new commercial services
for the healthcare sector with all profits going back into the hospital and
improving patient care.
King’s portfolio of software-based solutions was developed during the year
and attracted the interest of increasing numbers of hospitals.
Our activity-based costing product, developed by KCH Commercial
Services and our operating company Agnentis, is now the market leader in
patient level costing. It enables hospitals to integrate patient activityrelated costs into strategic, financial and performance processes and to
access current data quickly. Further development on the product has
recently been taken on by CACI Limited.
The product range was expanded during the year to include Shadow
Planner; an innovative product that allows organisations to plan and
monitor their Business Continuity plans to ensure they are in a position to
respond swiftly and methodically to unexpected events and emergencies.
Agnentis has invested in product development during the year and will be
launching further product lines in the near future. Our products are
designed by healthcare professionals for healthcare use and allow NHS
customers to take advantage of fully tested solutions and the costefficiencies created when organisations adopt the system across all their
departments.
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4.2.2 Environment
2008/9 has been a busy year for King’s. The Trust produced 1,238 tonnes
of various clinical waste, of which 25% was sent to incineration at a waste
to energy plant. We produced 1,278 tonnes of domestic waste and
managed to recycle 369 tonnes (29%). In addition to this 2,870 toner
cartridges were recycled helping to raise money for the silver lining
appeal. King’s is currently trialling the composting of food waste to work
towards its zero landfill target.
King’s has also seen the launch of its internal CO2 reduction campaign
‘King’s Cuts Carbon’. This was part of the NHS Carbon Management
scheme which King’s successfully graduated from at the end of March
2009. The Trust now has a Board approved Carbon Reduction
Management Plan in place that has committed to reduce our annual CO2
emissions by 25% by 2014 from the existing 2007 baseline plus
anticipated new builds. This target equates to 6,945 tonnes of CO2, and
will be delivered by delivering key projects that include energy saving
lighting initiatives, a new combined heat and power plant, the
introduction of a new post of Carbon reduction Officer plus many more.
King’s asks everyone that visits its sites to continue this work by recycling
in the main points around the site and saving energy where ever possible.
4.2.3

Workforce

Staff Development
King’s places great emphasis on the welfare of every person employed by
the Trust. By continually investing in training and development, by
encouraging people to innovate and by retaining a fresh approach to what
we do, our staff continue to deliver better care, year-on-year, to the
communities we serve.
Our staff’s commitment was validated during the year in the results of our
staff survey which placed us in the top 20% nationally for training, well
structured appraisals and recommending the Trust as a place to work
Our workforce is large and growing. Our headcount in March 2009 was
6500 staff. We remain a very popular employer having received 50,000
applications for our vacancies in 2008/9.
New management development programmes launched.
We want our staff to realise their full potential and encourage them to
take advantage of continued professional development, qualifications and
training.
We added new courses to our extensive catalogue of staff and
management development programmes during the year. New training
included:
•

Coaching for Performance, a three-day programme which has given
over 60 experienced managers tools and techniques to get the
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optimum performance from their staff and develop them for future
roles
•

Self-marketing, a programme designed to help staff with their
presentation, application and interviewing skills, which was
attended by over 50 staff

•

The Senior Management Development Programme (clinical directors
also participate in this) run with the King’s Fund, which includes a
work-based project designed to encourage good management
practices that can improve patient outcomes and experiences

•

The Keele Clinical Leadership Programme, developed in conjunction
with Keele University to help clinical leads and directors to manage
and embrace change.

We have doubled the provision of vocational training to our unqualified
staff in the past year, and continue to encourage their progression on our
established careers escalators.
Medical staff development
During 2008 there has been a significant investment into Staff and
Associate Specialist grade development. An agreement has been reach to
increase the monies available to Consultants for professional development
and programmes have been developed for middle grade and Consultant
leadership development.
Commendation awards
During the year we presented Commendation Awards to 14 individuals
and 9 teams in recognition of their outstanding contribution to the hospital
and our patients. Awardees included:
•
The Friday Morning Clinical Gerontology Outpatient Team based in
the Betty Alexander Suite at Dulwich for providing a service which a
patient described as being “at the pinnacle of elderly care in the NHS”
•

A team of nurses who pulled together to care simultaneously for a
group of highly dependent and terminally ill patients and their
families “with a gentleness and professionalism of which King's can
be proud”

•

Two nursing sisters for their successful management of an extremely
disturbing and violent incident in A & E, during which their clear
thinking, professionalism and compassion prevented a potentially
dangerous situation from escalating

Positive about disabled people
King’s has been re-accredited with the nationally recognised 'Two Ticks'
disability symbol signifying good practice in the employment, retention,
training and career development of employees with a disability. We will
continue to meet these commitments including:

17

•
•

•
•

•

Interviewing all applicants with a disability who meet the essential
criteria for a post and consider them on their abilities.
Ensuring there is a mechanism in place to discuss at any time, and at
least once a year, with disabled employees how they can develop and
use their abilities.
Making every effort when an employee becomes disabled to ensure
they are able to stay in employment.
Taking appropriate action to ensure that all employees develop the
appropriate level of disability awareness needed to make the
commitments work.
Reviewing the commitments each year, including what has been
achieved, planning ways to improve and letting employees know
about future plans and progress.

Last year the Trust published a Disability Charter, which sets out our
ethos and firm commitment to disability equality.
The Trust has developed a disability and deaf guide in partnership with
the Deaf and Disability Staff Group. The guide outlines the responsibilities
and behaviours expected of staff and managers.
All recruiting managers must attend a formal Trust recruitment and
selection training course to understand the significance of the Disability
Discrimination Act (DDA) and how it works in practice. Recruiting
managers must select for interview or assessment all candidates who
meet the essential requirements for the role and have indicated they have
a disability, as defined in the DDA. At the interview, discussions can also
take place on reasonable adjustments that may be necessary for a
candidate to perform effectively in their new role.
Equality and Diversity
King’s is located in one of London’s – if not the UK’s – most diverse areas.
For this reason, we ensure that equality and diversity issues remain frontof-mind for everyone who works for King’s.
Changing policies to reflect our equality commitments
In 2007-08, we took the decision to review all existing and planned
services and policies, against equality and diversity indicators, on a three
year cycle. A number of major equality-related changes were introduced.
For disabled patients, we improved access to the Ruskin Wing from
Denmark Hill Road by building a fully covered ramp, built to the latest
DDA standards. We also introduced portable hearing loop systems to
make it easier for staff to talk in private with partially deaf patients and
simple things like installing new bins in toilets that can be used by
wheelchair-bound patients and visitors.
For staff we introduced 24/7 access to an independently-run harassment
and bullying helpline. We also revised our policy on sickness absence so
that staff returning from periods of absence could benefit from phased
returns to work on full pay and we expanded Kingsflex, our flexible
working scheme, to help staff balance family and work commitments.
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Setting the pace
King’s is one of four London sites taking part in the national Pacesetters
Programme, a Department of Health initiative designed to tackle health
and workplace inequalities caused by discrimination and disadvantage.
Six new equality-led projects are being implemented as a result of our
involvement in the programme.
•

Implementation of British Dental Association case mix toolkit to help
measure impairment and disability reflecting the additional time and
resources required to provide care for patients with a disability or
special needs

•

A programme that encourages healthier lifestyle choices amongst
women with gestational diabetes to reduce their risk of developing
Type 2 diabetes

•

We have worked with local young people to film and produce a DVD,
to provide high-quality advice and information about sexual health
services to young people

•

Introduction of a network of disability advisors. Members of King’s
deaf and disability staff group is comprised of staff with a wide range
of disabilities, they act as advisors and provide a user perspective
offering guidance and pastoral support to staff with a disability and
offer managers advice on managing staff with a disability.

•

Launch of a buddy scheme for new staff to encourage staff to discuss
and reflect on their working patterns and advice on balancing
individual needs and organisational requirements

•

Introduction of a shadowing scheme to provide support and
guidance for Band 7 staff with an interest in applying for a senior
position at King’s.

We are Positively Diverse
In 2009 we were one of just 20 Trusts in England awarded with Positively
Diverse lead site status.
Our equality and diversity training programme helps ensure staff have the
skills and knowledge they need to provide all of our patients with
consistently high standards of care. Since September 2006, nearly 3,212
members of staff have taken part in the Garnett Foundation theatre
company’s drama-based diversity training workshops. They have all
benefited from the theatre’s creative learning approach. This is also
incorporated into the induction programme for all new staff, as well as
being key to recruitment training and effective staff management
programmes.
In March 2008 we adopted a fresh approach to training for our diversity
champions and senior managers by working in partnership with the Royal
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College of Nursing to offer a leadership and diversity workshop aimed at
exploring how hospital leaders promote and implement equality and
diversity.
Our equality agenda features heavily in the recruitment & selection
training, which is mandatory for all those taking part in recruitment
panels. We also provide training to front line staff in deaf and disability
awareness, and training for managers in managing deaf and disabled staff
appropriately. An introductory British Sign Language e-learning
programme is available for staff too. We provide self-marketing courses
to help all staff improve their prospects within the Trust.
King’s also continues to invest in a work placement scheme designed to
help people with a disability. In conjunction with Rehab UK, we offer
people with brain injury the chance to get back into the workplace by
providing interview experience and skills coaching.
Networks help ensure all voices are heard
King’s has three staff-led diversity networks. The diversity networks
include the Cultural Diversity Group (CDG), the Disability and Deaf Staff
Group (DDSG) and the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender Forum
(LGBT).
In July, King’s Cultural Diversity Group hosted a lunchtime seminar for
staff networks from across Lambeth and Southwark. The event focused on
‘Strategies for Success’. Guest speakers included Lynda Brooks from the
Department of Health and Jason Nair from the National ‘Breaking Through’
Programme at the NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement. The
National ‘Breaking Through’ Top Talent Programme aims to identify the
most talented BME Managers in the NHS and, through a series of
development activities, help them to function effectively at director level.
The programme is aimed at managers or clinicians at AfC Band 8 or
equivalent, who are in a substantive post in the NHS. In-house we
commissioned ASTAR to provide a management development programme
aimed at staff at an earlier stage in their careers.
The LGBT Forum has continued to use a distribution list to keep in touch
and share ideas. The Forum plans to continue working with Southwark
Council to promote the agenda.
The Disability and Deaf Staff Group continue to meet regularly. The Group
hosted a trust-wide event to raise awareness of disability issues.
King’s Commitment
King’s is committed to employing a workforce that reflects the diverse
communities we serve. Our recruitment policies support this. Today, 48%
of our staff are from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) backgrounds. The
proportion of middle/senior staff from BME backgrounds has also
increased from 25% in 2002 to 33% in 2007 and 36% in 2009.
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Staff survey
The 2008 National NHS Staff Survey results reported on 36 key findings:
King’s was ranked in the top 20% nationally for 11 and the worst 20% for
10. Areas where King’s performed well included staff feeling that they
work in a well structured team environment, numbers of staff having an
appraisal in the last 12 months and numbers of staff feeling satisfied with
the quality of work and patient care they are able to deliver, where King’s
was the highest scoring trust in London.
The survey also found that nearly two thirds of King’s staff would
recommend the Trust as a place to work, putting us in the top 20%
nationally. King’s performed less well for the numbers of staff reporting
bullying and harassment at work and numbers witnessing potentially
harmful errors, near misses or incidents, although we rated average for
the fairness and effectiveness of procedures for reporting errors and near
misses.
Collaborative working
To maintain our reputation as a model employer, our Joint Consultation
Committee (JCC) meets monthly to enable Trust managers and staff
representatives to review employment policies and practices. Managers
and consultants also meet at monthly Consultants’ Committee meetings to
ensure that close working relationships are maintained
Occupational health and safety
Occupational health and safety is overseen by our Health and Safety
Committee.
Key achievements in 2008-9 included:
•

Our health and safety training programme continues. Management
training has focused on developing capability in each division by
providing the Risk Management IOSH (safety and risk in healthcare)
course along with disability training for managers

•

Combating levels of blood borne virus exposures remains an important
priority and policies on blood borne viruses have been made readily
available on the Trust intranet

•

Pilot site for the Needlestick Survey of all Healthcare Workers, which
should lead to the development of a national web-based surveillance
system to enable analysis and prevention of BBV incidents and
seroconversions

•

86% of departments have returned safety self-assessment checklists

•

Overall incidents of violence increased hiding a welcome decrease in
assaults from 2007/8 (99 to 66) but a significant increase in the
number of reported verbal/threatening behaviour (766 to 1133)
attributed to better reporting. There is a continued drive to promote a
security culture, and a Safer Neighbourhood Panel has been
established with a local police officer seconded to the hospital
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•

The department has embarked on an immunisation recall project to
manage outbreaks risks by establishing a staff immunisation status
register and ensuring all staff in the Trust are appropriately
immunised, to enhance patient safety. The project has prioritised high
risk areas, with the first three phases covering child health, renal and
women’s health in progress presently

•

We have responded to 8 outbreaks of infectious disease, which
included screening of 435 staff members

•

The 2008/2009 flu vaccination campaign for staff ran between the 13th
October and 15th December 2008. On the 30th of December, this was
extended to the middle of January 2009 in response to continued
interest and increased levels of seasonal flu. A total of 736 members
of staff received the flu vaccine, representing an increase on the
previous year

•

Appointment of new staff enables us to focus on workplace
assessments and attendance management, and a health trainer on
secondment from Southwark PCT is piloting delivery of a lifestyle
advisory service giving information on diet, exercise, stress
management and smoking cessation

•

We have participated in national audits on the important areas of
depression and low back pain, carried out as part of the Occupational
Health Clinical Effectiveness Unit audit programme which aims to
improve the quality of occupational health services provided across
the country

•

In 2008/09 we reduced our staff sickness and absence rates by
1.01% from the 2007/08 position.

Actions taken in the financial year to provide employees
systematically with information on matters of concern to them as
employees
•

Corporate Induction and Local Induction is mandatory for all new
members of staff

•

Key messages to staff are communicated via the monthly Chief
Executive’s Brief

•

Clear management/committee structure which ensures that key issues
can be cascaded throughout organisation

•

King’s has a strong culture of regular team meetings - Kings rated in
top 20% nationally for effectiveness of team working in national staff
survey

•

Regular lunchtime briefings from Executive Directors

22

•

All new members of staff receive a king’s email account at the time of
induction

•

There is a staff magazine – King’s news, which is published 10 times a
year

•

A special e-magazine has been introduced to keep staff updated on
AHSC issues in particular. This is made available across all King’s
Health Partners organisations

Actions taken in the financial year to encourage the involvement
of employees in the NHS foundation trust’s performance
•

94% of staff with 12 months service on 31 March 2009 had a
performance appraisal

•

In 2008 the Trust made improving the quality of appraisals a priority –
the 2008 NHS national staff survey ranked King’s in the top 20% for
quality of appraisals

•

King’s was also in the top 20% of NHS staff survey results for staff
accessing training and staff having Personal Development Plans

•

In 2008 the Trust reviewed its Performance Management Policy with its
staff side partners

•

Rolling programme of organisational development with emphasis on
staff involvement

•

Frequent presentations on Trust performance at team meetings and
within Trust publications

Actions taken in the financial year to achieve a common
awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and
economic factors affecting the performance of the NHS foundation
Trust.
•

Regular presentations on Trust’s financial position at the JCC and in
Trust publications

•

Cost improvement requirements clearly discussed and communicated
to staff via team meetings

Actions taken in the financial year to consult employees or their
representatives on a regular basis so that the views of employees
can be taken into account in making decisions which are likely to
affect their interests.
•

Management representatives and representatives from recognised
trade unions meet once every two months as part of the Joint
Consultative Committee (JCC)
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•

In addition there is JCC sub group, which also meets once every two
months, which is primarily focused on policy development and review.

•

Well attended JCC meetings took place throughout 2008/9

•

The JCC reviewed and agreed new versions of the following workforce
policies: grievance, appeals, equal opportunities, training policy,
management of poor performance, expense claim, relocation, provision
of intimate care

•

Development of the AHSC is a standing item on JCC agenda

•

In addition the Trust’s self organised equality groups, the Cultural
Diversity Group (which focuses primarily on ethnicity and culture) and
Disability and Deaf Staff Group, met on a regular basis and invited
senior members of staff to discuss issues of interest to the groups.

Information Governance
The Information Governance Steering Group is responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of our information governance systems and processes.
The Caldicott Guardian together with other colleagues, including the
Information Security Manager, plays a key role in ensuring the highest
practical standards for the confidential handling of patient information and
for advising both individuals and Trust management on confidentiality
matters. During the year two serious incidents occurred both of which
were fully investigated and actions taken. There has been an extensive
exercise in the encryption of all laptops and memory sticks, amongst
other security measures.

INCIDENTS RELATING TO PERSONAL DATA IN 2008-09
Category
Nature of incident
I
Loss of inadequately protected electronic
equipment, devices or paper documents from
secured NHS premises
II
Loss of inadequately protected electronic
equipment, devices or paper documents from
outside secured NHS premises
III
Insecure disposal of inadequately protected
electronic equipment, devices or paper
documents
IV
Unauthorised disclosure
V
Other

Total
1

1

0

0
0
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5. Quality Report
Everything we do at King’s College Hospital is designed to achieve great
outcomes for patients. We are proud to be taking part in a pilot project to
develop Quality Accounts, which will be mandatory from next year.
So I am delighted to present our first Quality Report.
It is because of the professionalism and hard work of all the staff at King’s
that we achieved all the national targets in 2008, and this report
highlights some of those successes. 2008 was a momentous year. We
have made significant reductions in the number of healthcare associated
infections and serious incidents. We have been accredited as an Academic
Health Sciences Centre, and have been designated as a proposed Trauma
and Stroke Centre. We have been awarded National Exemplar status in
the prevention and treatment of Venous Thromboembolism (VTE). King’s
also has the highest home birth rate in London and the second highest in
the country.
The Trust Board is committed to improving quality for patients by reducing
infection rates, improving patient outcomes and improving the patient
experience. We have been delivering this commitment through our First
Choice service transformation programme.
I hope you find this report interesting. We are committed to continuous
improvement, and welcome feedback. Your interest will ensure that we
will build on our success as we strive to achieve World Class quality care
for all our patients.
Tim Smart
Chief Executive
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
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5.1 Quality Narrative
King’s made impressive progress in 2008/09 towards providing high
quality care thanks to the excellent work of our staff. We continue to be a
high performing Foundation Trust and have developed a wide range of
initiatives to improve quality of care and patient experience.
Through our monthly “How Are We Doing?” (HRWD) survey, we continue
to explore new ways to listen to our patients and make improvements
based on this valuable feedback. The HRWD survey has been running
since 2004, and we receive between 1,200 and 1,500 responses every
month. Results are discussed at all levels from ward team meetings up to
the Board of Directors, as well as being publicised to patients on wards.
Keeping patients safe is at the heart of everything we do. We signed up to
the National Patient Safety Campaign and have developed effective
systems for reporting adverse incidents and near misses, investigating the
root causes of incidents and taking actions to make improvements. In
2008/09, compared with 2007/08, we reported:
•

Zero serious (red) medication errors

•

Significant reduction in Clostridium Difficile (C. diff) and
Vancomycin-resistant Enterococci (VRE) cases

•

31% reduction in the total number of serious adverse incidents

•

23% reduction in the total number of the Reporting of Injuries,
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR)
notifications

•

22% reduction in the total number of needlestick injuries

King’s has a widely recognised performance management framework. All
divisions and teams have well established scorecards which measure a
range of quality indicators on a monthly basis. This timely and reliable
information provides us with regular feedback on key measures including
waiting times, infection rates and patient experience. Building on this
strong infrastructure, we have identified a wide range of additional quality
indicators to be measured in 2009/10.
Along with our partner organisations, Guy’s & St. Thomas’, South London
& Maudsley NHS Foundation Trusts and King’s College London, King’s
College Hospital is now part of King’s Health Partners, one of the UK’s first
five Academic Health Sciences Centres (AHSC). This is international
recognition of King’s achievements and puts us in a strong position to
continue our journey towards providing excellent quality of care for our
patients supported by world class research, education and innovation.
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5.2 Quality Highlights 2008/09
This section highlights a number of quality improvements the Trust made
in 2008/09.
Saving More Lives in the Emergency Department
2008/09 saw a significant increase in the number of people coming
through our Emergency Department (ED). We provided quick access at ED
and King’s is one of only two London teaching hospitals to achieve the
98% target for type 1 A&E performance in 2008/09.
King’s has achieved excellent results in the national Trauma and Audit
Research Network (TARN) data. In 2007/08 there were 4.6 unexpected
survivors out of every 100 patients and in 2008/09, 6.9 unexpected
survivors out of every 100 patients, as shown in the table below:

Figure 2-1 Trauma Care - Unexpected Survivors at King’s 2006-2008
In addition, King’s is rated among the best performing 20% of London
trusts for the question “Overall, how would you rate the care you received
in the Emergency Department?” according to the Healthcare Commission’s
2008 national Emergency Department survey.
As part of the changes proposed under the Healthcare for London
programme, King’s Emergency Department has been designated as a
potential Major Trauma Centre for London, in partnership with Guy’s & St.
Thomas’. We are currently awaiting the outcome of NHS London’s public
consultation on these proposals.
Providing Excellent Stroke Care
According to the Royal College of Physicians, patients who come to a
specialist stroke centre have a much better chance of receiving
appropriate treatment which will reduce the chances of them suffering
longer term disability.
The 2008 report of the National Sentinel Audit of Stroke found that King’s
is the best performing Trust across England, Wales and Northern Ireland
in the following areas:
•

Acute care organisation;
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•
•
•
•

Organisation of care;
Transient ischaemic attack/neurovascular clinic;
Continuing education;
Team meetings and communication with patients and carers.

King’s overall score for the organisation of stroke is 94 – the range across
England, Wales & Northern Ireland being 15-95 and the median total
organisational score being 69.
Leading Edge Cardiac Services
High quality care for people having a heart attack includes early diagnosis
and rapid treatment to re-open the blocked coronary artery responsible.
This is usually undertaken using clot dissolving drugs, but King’s is leading
the way in providing a longer-term solution - primary angioplasty - where
a balloon is inserted into the coronary artery to keep it open and restore
blood flow.
The excellence of care for heart attack patients at King’s is nationally
recognised. Locally, King’s now receives all patients from Lewisham
Hospital’s catchment area as well as our own, ensuring that this excellent
service can reach the maximum number of people.
In 2008, 100% of King’s patients received primary angioplasty, whilst the
England and Wales average was 27%. 86% of King’s patients received
primary angioplasty within 90 minutes of arrival, against the England and
Wales average of 79%. The average (median) time to receive a primary
angioplasty at King’s is 35 minutes compared to the average (median) of
56 minutes in England and Wales.
Providing better access and more choice in Maternity Services
We are providing better access and more choice in maternity services.
More women chose to deliver their babies at King’s in 2008/09 than ever
before. In line with the Safer Childbirth report published by the Royal
College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (RCOG), King’s introduced 98
hour/week consultant obstetrics cover on its labour ward in October 2008.
We have introduced two new community midwifery group practices,
representing a total of 14 additional midwifes. As a result, our home birth
rate has increased to over 10%, the second highest in the country.
During the year, we began a project called Centering Pregnancy to trial a
new model of maternity care providing complete antenatal care –
assessment, support and education - within a group setting. The outcome
of the pilot groups will help to inform our future model of antenatal care.
We are developing plans to create a midwifery led unit in line with
recommendations from the Department of Health’s “Maternity Matters”
report. This will enable King’s to provide all women using its maternity
services with a choice of treatment and delivery options.
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Theatre staff commit to safer surgery
The World Health Organisation recently identified a set of key safety steps
to be used before, during and after every surgical operation or procedure
in a hospital.
Operating theatre staff across King’s are now using a surgical safety
checklist which they have designed in collaboration with surgeons and
anaesthetists. The checklist requires a team approach, and avoids the
need to rely on separate checks being performed by different individuals.
The new system is now being used in all of King’s 26 operating theatres.
5.3

Quality Priorities 2009/10

Although we have made progress in improving quality in 2008/09, we fully
recognise that there are a number of areas in which we can do better. We
are consulting with our clinical staff, members, governors, managers and
Trust Board on Quality Account development at King’s. We will update the
Trust scorecard with new quality indicators based on feedback received
across the Trust. Specialties have started local discussions about
developing additional local quality indicators.
Our strategy to deliver quality improvement is to embed quality into our
existing performance management framework, engage and empower front
line staff, strengthen our processes and focus on outcomes through
monthly monitoring.
We will continuously monitor quality of care to ensure that emerging
quality issues are addressed. With this in mind, we have identified four
key quality priorities at King’s in 2009/10:
•
•
•
•

Achieving Never Events
Enhanced focus on Mortality & Morbidity Rates
Further Reduction in infection rates
Further improve patient experience

9
Achieving Never Events
The National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) published its Never Events
Framework 2009/10 in March 2009. In addition, High Quality Care
for All: the NHS Next Stage Review Final Report proposed that a
policy on Never Events should be introduced in the NHS in England from
April 2009.
King’s is committed to achieving the following Never Events1 in 2009/10:
• Wrong site surgery;
• Retained instrument post-operation;
1

The Framework sets out a list of eight Never Events, including one related to mental health
settings - “Escape from within the secure perimeter of medium or high secure mental health
services by patients who are transferred prisoners”
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•
•
•
•
•

Wrong route administration of chemotherapy;
Misplaced naso or orogastric tube not detected prior to use;
Inpatient suicide using non-collapsible rails;
In-hospital maternal death from post-partum haemorrhage after
elective caesarean section;
Intravenous administration of mis-selected concentrated potassium
chloride.

We will review operational procedures and “fail safe” mechanisms against
each of these events with reference to national guidance, and each event
will be subject to regular audit. King’s has already introduced the World
Health Organisation’s Surgical Safety Checklist.
Enhanced focus on mortality and morbidity rates
King’s is proud of its record in achieving good outcomes for patients, and
staff work hard to minimise poor outcomes including death and
complications from treatments. Although only a very small percentage of
King’s patients die in the hospital, we strive to learn from each event.
Mortality and morbidity meetings are held across the Trust.
Mortality rates are a key measure of a hospital’s performance on clinical
outcomes. Currently, there are a number of different measures of
mortality, including the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR)
published by the Dr Foster Unit at Imperial College London and CHKS’s
Risk Adjusted Mortality Rate.
Although a recent Department of Health report2 indicated that “HSMR data
is not a measure accurate enough to be used as an absolute indicator of
quality and safety…triangulation of data is key”, King’s will be monitoring
HSMR and Risk Adjusted Mortality Rate as well as deaths in low risk
disease groups during 2009/10.
Further Reduction in infection rates
Minimising the number of healthcare associated infections remains a top
priority. We have already introduced a number of initiatives to support
this, including:
•
•
•

An increase in the number of isolation facilities;
Increased hand-washing facilities;
Improved prescribing of antibiotics.

As a result, we have already achieved significant reductions in C. diff and
VRE infections. In 2008/09, we reported a 40% reduction in C. diff cases
and a 31% reduction in VRE cases.
New initiatives to be implemented in 2009/10 include:
2

Page 5, Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust: A review of lessons learnt for commissioners
and performance managers following the Healthcare Commission investigation by Dr David Colin
Thomé. 29 April 2009.
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•
•
•

MRSA screening of all emergency as well as elective cases;
Additional investment in infection control staff;
Continued monitoring of best practice and learning from other NHS
organisations.

Further improve patient experience
Listening to what our patients tell us and improving their experience is
core to King’s objectives and priorities. Our ongoing “How Are We Doing?”
(HRWD) survey provides feedback from all inpatient areas, Day Surgery
and the Dental Hospital. We have piloted a number of patient feedback
methods in outpatient areas, including face to face interviews, touch
screen kiosks, comment schemes and surveys. We are currently trialling
HRWD survey in outpatient areas.
A Trust wide comment card scheme covers all public areas of the hospital,
and can be used by patients, visitors and staff. Our Divisions undertake a
range of patient engagement work to inform service design and improve
services, from focus groups to involving staff in recruitment and training.
We undertook a number of service transformation initiatives in 2008/09 in
our outpatient areas. As a result, changes have been made to the clinic
environment in some areas, including replacing televisions with speakers
playing easy listening music and installing information boards to inform
patients about how long they have to wait and, if there is a delay, the
reason for the delay.
A Patient Engagement Guide for staff has been launched to help staff
listen to patients and engage them in service design and evaluation.
In 2008/09 we also launched a monthly Patient Experience Report,
integrating patient feedback from the HRWD survey, complaints, Patient
Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) and patient comments. The report has
information at Trust, division and ward/specialty level, and will be a key
tool to drive service improvement. A Patient Engagement Guide for staff
has been launched to help staff listen to patients and engage them in
service design and evaluation.
Learning from recently published 2008 National Inpatient Survey, we will
continue existing work streams and develop new initiatives to further
improve the patient experience at King’s in 2009/10, including:
•
•
•
•

Roll out patient feedback to outpatient services;
Implement improvements that make it easier for patients to contact
the hospital;
Review our referral and appointments processes and written
communication with patients;
Introduce “Quality Ward Rounds3”.

5.4.1 Response to Regulators
3

An initiative of auditing care of exiting inpatients on a weekly basis.
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King’s was fully compliant with all core targets in 2008/09 and achieved a
green rating from Monitor.
King’s was inspected by the Healthcare Commission against the Hygiene
Code in July 2008 and was found to be fully compliant in all areas
inspected. The inspection found that King’s has appropriate management
systems in place, a clean environment and adequate isolation facilities.
King’s was fully compliant with all core standards under Standards for
Better Health.
King’s achieved an ‘excellent’ rating for use of resources and a ‘fair’ rating
for quality in the Healthcare Commission’s 2007/08 Annual Healthcheck.
Under the ‘quality’ rating, King’s achieved full compliance against all
existing national targets, but failed to achieve full compliance with two
areas under new national targets as the result of data submission errors.
Robust systems have been put in place to ensure there is no recurrence,
and these have been audited by the trust’s external auditors.
5.4.2

Response to LINks and to Feedback from Members and
Governors

At King’s, we have well established forums and programmes to engage
members and governors. We are also working closely with our Local
Involvement Networks (LINks) to establish protocols for working together.
During 2008/09 the trust undertook an extensive public consultation
exercise with partner organisations Southwark and Lambeth PCTs, and
South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust on the proposed
redevelopment of the Emergency Department. The local LINks from
Lambeth and Southwark were involved in the consultation process, as
were a range of patient groups, members, Governors and other voluntary
and statutory organisations.
The trust holds a series of members’ community meetings annually, which
are used as forums for debate about the trust’s strategic priorities, to
enable member feedback to the trust on key issues, and to facilitate
interaction between Governors and members, and with the local
community. The Trust also holds an annual Open Day, to which all
members are invited. We also run a popular Member Seminar
programme.
Governors have participated in a variety of ways in a range of patient
experience and safety initiatives within the Trust during the year. They
have taken part in quality ward rounds, the annual PEAT (Patient
Environment Action Team) inspection, undertaken qualitative work in the
Health and Ageing Unit, conducted interviews with patients and members
of the public at the Open Day. Governors sit on a range of trust
committees involved with the patient experience, including the Nutrition
Support Group, and the Patient/Carer Experience Group. A sub group of
the Board of Governors, the Patient Experience and Safety Committee is
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responsible for drafting the Governors’ commentary on the Trust’s
submission for Standards for Better Health and focusing on the Trusts
work on improving patient experience and safety.
A range of changes have been made as the result of feedback from
Governors, members and patients over the year. These include:
• General and Emergency Medicine: improved systems for
ensuring that patients in the health and aging unit receive
appropriate help to eat their meals - changes have already resulted
in increased patient satisfaction;
• Ophthalmology outpatients: removal of televisions from waiting
areas and replacement with speakers playing music;
• Child Health: employment of three new play specialists;
• Trust wide: re-locating external smoking cabins away from main
entrances.
5.5 Quality Overview
Quality Metrics 2008/09
Safety measures reported
1. Infections:
1.1. Patients with Clostridium difficile/10,000
bed days4
1.2. Number of VRE cases5/10,000 bed days
1.3. Patients with MRSA infection/10,000 bed
days6
2. Number red medication errors

2007-08

2008-09

9.93

5.83

1.65
1.14

1.14
1.14

0

0

Effectiveness measures reported
3. Trauma care-the number of “unexpected
survivors out of every 100 patients”7
4. Average Length of Stay – non-elective8
5. Day case rate9

4.6

6.9

4.4
73.3%

4.1
74.6%

Patient experience measures reported
6. King’s HRWD Survey results – the proportion
of positive responses from all discharged inpatients10:
6.1. Care perceptions
6.2. Patient engagement
6.3. Environment

84.8%
82.9%
68.1%

85.8%
84.6%
70.6%

4

Trust Scorecard, King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Infection Control Report, King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
6
Trust Scorecard, King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
7
National Trauma Audit & Research Network: https://www.tarn.ac.uk/Content.aspx?c=2897&hid=8102
8
Trust Scorecard, King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
9
Trust Scorecard, King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
10
Trust Scorecard, King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
5
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5.6 National Targets and Regulatory Requirements
We are fully compliant with all national core standards and are also confident about
our performance against these existing commitments and new national priorities set
by the Care Quality Commission.
•

Core Standards and Existing Commitments

Indicator Name

Measure

Time Period
Financial Year 2008/09
Quarters 1 to 4 v
Financial Year 2007/08
Quarters 1 to 4
April 2008 to December
2008

Threshold

2008/09

95.41%

100%

80.00%

92.50%

Access to GUM Clinics

%

Data Quality on ethnic group

%

Time to reperfusion for
patients who have had a
heart attack

%

Financial year 2008/09

N/A

N/A11

Delayed transfers of care

%

Q1 & Q2 of Financial
year 2008/09

3.50%

0.17%

Total time in A&E

%

Financial year 2008/09

98%

98.3%

Inpatients waiting longer
than the 26 week standard

%

Financial year 2008/09

0.03%

0%

%

Financial year 2008/09

0.03%

0%

%

Financial year 2008/09

0.1%

0%

%

Financial year 2008/09

98%

98.8%

%

Financial year 2008/09

0.8%

0.58%

%

Financial year 2008/09

5%

0.95%

Outpatients waiting longer
than the 13 week standard
Patients waiting longer than
3 months (13 weeks) for
revascularisation
Waiting times for Rapid
Access Chest Pain Clinic
Cancelled operations and
those not admitted within 28
days

11

Not Applicable as thrombolysis treatment is not the King’s treatment for patients with acute
myocardial infarction.
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•

New National Priorities

Indicator Name

Infant health &
inequalities:
smoking
during
pregnancy
and
breastfeeding
initiation

Calculating the indicator
The actual number of women known to be smokers
at the time of delivery divided by the actual number
of maternities (2008/09 v 2007/08)
Data quality on smoking status not known (must be
below 5%)
The actual number of mothers who initiate
breastfeeding, within first 48 hours divided by the
actual number of maternities. (2008/09 v 2007/08)
Data quality on breastfeeding status not known
(must be below 5%)
Greater than or equal to 90% completion for the
key fields in Myocardial Ischaemia National Audit
Project (MINAP)12.
Trusts to take part in annual 2008 MINAP data
validation exercise13.

Measure
%
%
%
%

6.5%

6.6%

5%

4.6%

90.5%

92.7%

5%

0.0%

90%

98.20%

Validated >
15 records

End of 2008

> 15
records

21 records
validated
4 uploads in
year

upload
%
%

Participation in adult cardiac surgery audit

Participation in congenital heart disease audit

2008/09

financial year
2008/09

Greater than or equal to 90% completion of the key
fields recorded by BCIS-CCAD audit project15.
Whether a Trust that provides PCI procedures has
greater than or equal to 90% completion for the key
date/time fields for primary PCI patients16.

Participation in cardiac rhythm management audit

Threshold

%

Participated in the BCIS-CCAD audit project14.
Participation
in
heart
disease
audits

Time Period
Financial Years
2007/08 and
2008/09
Financial Year
2008/09
Financial Years
2007/08 and
2008/09
Financial Year
2008/09

Data
Submission
17

calendar year
2008
calendar year
2008
calendar year
2008
financial year
2008/09
calendar year
2008
financial year
2008/09

Unknown
90%

98.80%

90%

98.80%

Unknown

Participated

Unknown

Participated

N/A

N/A

13

14

The data completeness fields will form the basis of the validation exercise. Evidence of this will be based on validation of a minimum of 15 records.
Measures whether or not trusts that provide PCI procedures participated in the BCIS-CCAD audit project with the uploading of individual procedural data to the Central Cardiac Audit
Database (CCAD) servers.
16

17

There are 5 key fields and it is noted that if the first hospital is also the PCI hospital, then the filed arrival to first hospital should match arrival at PCI hospital.
Trust deemed to participate in audit if they have systems and processes in place to submit data via the appropriate data collection method and have used this method to submit. Trusts
must have continuously submitted data for the audits once participation has commenced.
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•

New National Priorities - continued

Indicator Name

Engagement in
clinical audits

Calculating the indicator
Between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009, did
the Trust participate in local and/or national
audits of the treatment and outcomes for
patients in each clinical directorate covered by
the trust?
By 31st March 2009, did the Trust have a clinical
audit strategy and programme related to both
local and national priorities with the overall main
aim of improving patient outcomes?
Between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009, did
the Trust make available suitable training,
awareness or support programmes to all
clinicians regarding the Trust's systems and
arrangements for participating in clinical audit?
Between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009, did
the Trust ensure that all clinicians and other
relevant staff conducting and/or managing
clinical audits were given appropriate time,
knowledge and skills to facilitate the successful
completion of the audit cycle?
Between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009, did
the Trust undertake a formal review of the local
and national audit programme undertaken in the
Trust to ensure that it meets organisations aims
and objectives as part of the wider quality
improvement programme?
Between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009, did
the Trust's management or governance leads
receive regular reports on the progress being
made in implementing the outcomes of national
clinical audits and review the outcomes, with
additional or re-audits being conducted where
necessary?

Measure

Time
Period

Yes/No response
to the 5 stages
of clinical audit

Threshold

2008/09

financial
year
2008/09

Yes

Infection control audit
programme: additional evidence
being collated via the Clinical
Audit Support System

Yes/No response
to 2 principles

financial
year
2008/09

Yes

documents signed off at Clinical
Effectiveness Committee on 2/2

Yes/No response
if training
includes the 5
stages of clinical
audit

financial
year
2008/09

Yes

Training programme in place,
widely disseminated information

Yes/No response

financial
year
2008/09

Yes

Training programme in place,
widely disseminated information;
ICAMS, CASS, IAMS, Clinical
Effectiveness Department,
system in place for obtaining
patient records for audit

Yes/No response

financial
year
2008/09

Yes

Reviewed at Clinical
Effectiveness Committee on 27th
April and agreed

Yes

Reports to Clinical Effectiveness
Committee on stroke, MINAP and
diabetes audits; reports to PSQC
by divisions include other
national audits. Compilation of
evidence included in quarterly
CED workstream reports to CEC.

Yes/No response

financial
year
2008/09
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•

New National Priorities – continued
Indicator Name

Calculating the indicator

Threshold

2008/09

%

56.30%

92%

%

73.30%

98%

Brain scan within 24 hours of stroke

%

57.30%

98%

Aspirin within 48 hours of admission

%

88.30%

100%

Physiotherapy within 72 hours of admission

%

88.00%

96%

Occupational therapy within 4 working days of admission

%

69.00%

96%

Patient weighed during admission

%

75.70%

98%

Mood assessed by discharge

%

67.80%

100%

Rehabilitation goals agreed

%

91.80%

100%

Numerator: Number of mandatory fields not complete
within all Maternity FCE's. Denominator: Number of
mandatory fields within all Maternity FCE's.

%

Unknown

9%

60% Reduction on 2003/04 performance = 43 cases.

Number

43

39

Unknown

100%

100%

100%

242

199

99%

100%

100%

100%

The percentage of patients recorded within the National
Sentinel Audit of Stroke that have spent more than 90%
of their stay in hospital on a stroke unit
Screening for swallowing disorders within 24 hours of
admission

Stroke Care

Maternity
Hospital
Episode
Statistics:
data quality indicator

Incidence of
Bacteraemia

MRSA

Incidence
of
Clostridium difficile

Measure

Data Quality - NHS number

%

Data Quality - 15th of month sign off

%

Trusts total trajectory for 200809 = 242 cases.

%

Data Quality - NHS number

%

Data Quality - 15th of month sign off

%

Time Period

2008

April - December
2008
financial year
2008/09
financial year
2008/09
financial year
2008/09
financial year
2008/09
financial year
2008/09
financial year
2008/09
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•

New National Priorities – continued

Indicator Name

18 week referral
to
treatment
times

All
cancers:
week wait

2

All cancers: one
month diagnosis
to
treatment
(including
new
cancer
strategy
commitment)

Calculating the indicator

Measure

18 weeks referral to treatment admitted patients
18 weeks referral to treatment admitted patients data
quality
18 weeks referral to treatment non-admitted patients.
18 weeks referral to treatment non-admitted patients
data quality
18 weeks direct access audiology patient with
completed pathways
18 weeks direct access audiology patient with
completed pathways data quality
Numerator: The number of patients first seen by a
specialist within two weeks when urgently referred by
their GP or dentist with suspected cancer.
Denominator: The number of patients first seen by a
specialist within two weeks when urgently referred by
their GP or dentist with suspected cancer.
Numerator: The number of patients receiving their first
definitive treatment within 31 days of a decision to
treat for cancer. Denominator: The total number of
patients receiving their first definitive treatment for
cancer.
Numerator: The number of patients receiving their first
definitive treatment within 31 days of a decision to
treat for cancer. Denominator: The total number of
patients receiving their first definitive treatment for
cancer.
Numerator: The number of patients receiving
subsequent treatment within 31 days of a decision to
treat for cancer. Denominator: The total number of
patients receiving subsequent treatments for cancer.

%
%
%

Time
Period

90%
January March 2009

%

2008/09
Jan
93.20%

90%-110%
95%

January March 2009

95%

Feb
92%

March
92%

91%
96.30%

90%

%
%

Threshold

97%

97%

94%
99%

97.30%

90%-100%

100%

97.50%

%

April December
2008

98%

100%

%

April December
2008

98%

99%

%

January March 2009

Unknown

Currently being validated

%

January March 2009

Unknown

Currently being validated
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•

New National Priorities – continued

Indicator Name

All
cancers:
2
month GP urgent
referral
to
treatment
(including
new
cancer
strategy
commitment)

Calculating the indicator
Numerator: The number of patients receiving their first
definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of GP/dentist
urgent referral for suspected cancer. Denominator: The total
number of patients receiving their first definitive treatment
for cancer following a GP/dentist urgent referral for
suspected cancer.
Numerator: The number of patients receiving their first
definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of GP/dentist
urgent referral for suspected cancer. Denominator: The total
number of patients receiving their first definitive treatment
for cancer following a GP/dentist urgent referral for
suspected cancer.
Numerator: The number of patients receiving their first
definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of urgent
referral from the national screening service. Denominator:
The total number of patients receiving their first definitive
treatment for cancer following an urgent screening referral
for suspected cancer.
Numerator: The number of patients receiving their first
definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of urgent
referral from a consultant (consultant upgrade) for
suspected cancer. Denominator: The total number of
patients receiving their first definitive treatment for cancer
following an urgent referral from a consultant (consultant
upgrade) for suspected cancer

Measure

Time
Period

Threshold

2008/09

%

financial
year
2008/09

96.36%

99%

%

January
- March
2009

Unknown

Currently
being
validated

%

January
- March
2009

Unknown

Currently
being
validated

%

January
- March
2009

Unknown

Currently
being
validated
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6. PATIENT CARE
How King’s is using its Foundation Trust status to develop its
services and improve patient care
We are continuing to develop and enhance the involvement of our
Foundation Trust members and Governors in helping us to improve the
patient experience.
King’s Governors are involved in a range of groups and committees, for
example, the trust Patient Carer Experience Group and our Nutrition
Support Group.
During this year a number of our Governors have been very actively
involved in nursing quality and safety audits on the wards giving a
valuable lay perspective and making suggestions for improvement.
Governor working groups and committees also have a focus on improving
patient care.
The Membership Committee oversees our member involvement
programme and the newly formed Patient Experience and Safety
Committee is a key forum for involving Governors in improving the patient
experience. Part of its programme of work this year has been to coordinate the Governors commentary on our Standards for Better Health
submission. To inform this work, Governors took part in a range of
activities including PEAT inspections, nursing audits, observations and
ward visits. One of our Governors also carried out a substantial piece of
work in our Health and Ageing Unit which included observations and
tracking a patient during their stay on the unit.
This has also been an exciting year in terms of engaging with our
membership to improve services. This year, the following projects have
had a particular focus on improving patient care and helping King’s
develop its services.
Releasing Time to Care (The Productive Ward)
Releasing time to care is a national programme which is all about
improving patient care by allowing nurses to spend more direct time at
the patient’s bedside delivering direct care to the patient. King’s is
currently rolling out the programme across wards in the Trust. Members
have been invited to take part in the programme. An information day was
held in January 2009 and a number of members have signed up to the
programme. Members will get involved in a range of activities from
interviewing patients and staff on the ward to helping conduct hand
hygiene audits.
King’s Patient Safety and Service Quality Research Centre
The Centre aims to drive improvements in the safety, quality and
effectiveness of the services the NHS provides to its patients and the
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public. It brings together NHS professionals with academic experts from a
wide range of backgrounds, including management and the social
sciences, to focus on investigating ways to improve the care of patients.
The research teams are committed to involving patients and the public in
the project and in 2008 an Involvement Day was held for members to find
out more about how to get involved in the research projects. Staff and
researchers from the PSSQ gave a presentation about the work of the
Centre and members were able to talk to project teams to find out more
about how to become involved. Members are being specifically invited to
take part in a project about involving FT Governors and members in
patient safety which is part of the organisational governance research
programme. The lead researcher for this project also attended the annual
Community Events for members and a dozen members have signed up to
be involved in the project.
End of Life Care in Lambeth and Southwark
Members have been invited to take part in the end of Life Care project, a
programme jointly funded by the Guy’s and St Thomas’ Charity, King’s
College Hospital Charity, and the Charitable Trustees of South London and
Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust. The programme will work in partnership
with local residents, health and social care services, as well as people who
work for community and voluntary groups, to develop a shared approach
towards providing everybody with the right to a ‘good’ death. Members
are being invited to take part in a range of involvement opportunities
including:
•
•
•

sharing ideas and experiences of care for those who are dying
getting involved in improving information for patients and carers
providing advice on each part of the programme through working
groups, by phone, email or letter, or through local support groups

Members who wish to take part will be provided with training and support
from the project team.
Involving younger members
Lambeth College
As part of a drive to recruit younger members, King’s has been working
with Lambeth College, a local further education college. This has
developed into a partnership with the college to involve young people in
the work of the Trust. Through the partnership, King’s is offering an ideal
opportunity for young people to get involved in their local hospital and to
learn new skills, through work experience, acting as a volunteer or getting
involved in a challenge project.
The partnership was launched at a King’s held a Careers Fair for students
of Lambeth College in November 2008. Over 60 students came along and
found out more about careers at King’s ranging from nursing to medical
engineering. The event also saw the launch of our exciting partnership
with the College. Since December, 24 students have signed up to

41

volunteer at King’s and young volunteers are already working in our
Maternity Ward, Orthopaedics Outpatients and Paediatric Outpatients. As
part of this partnership, King’s is also broadening its work experience
programme for young people and hopes to place young people in a range
of areas including: King’s day nurseries, the Dental Institute, ICT and
Communications. To date over 30 applications and a number of students
are already gaining work experience in administration and business roles.
A really exciting part of the programme are the King’s Partnership
Challenges which give students the opportunity be take part in challenge
projects. We want young people to really get involved in the work of
King’s and help to improve our services and make sure that they meet the
needs of young people. Here are three examples of the challenges:
•

100 Denmark Hill - Sexual Health Centre
Students from the College will get involved in a range of projects in
the new Sexual Health Centre at 100 Denmark Hill. They will be
helping to develop information for young people and helping to
evaluate the success of the centre. This might include interviewing
young people using the centre about their experience and how we
might improve the service.

•

King’s on the web – web space for younger members
Working with our Communications and Marketing team to develop
content for King’s website, for example, young members section,
younger member’s forum and a young members page for this
newsletter.

•

Member Seminars – for young people
Working with the Patient and Public Involvement Team, teams
students will be given information about the clinical services that
King’s provides to its patients. Teams will then conduct research
into subjects that might appeal to younger members. Teams will
present their findings to King’s staff to include seminar topics and
how they will appeal to a younger audience. The Trust will then
develop a seminar programme for younger members.

Service improvements following staff or patient surveys or
comments and Healthcare Commission reports
The involvement of our Governors has resulted in a number of key
changes and improvements to services. For example: the development
“The Sanctuary”, a place for patients, relatives and staff to visit for quiet
contemplation, employment of a dedicated grounds person to clean the
hospital grounds
The Trust has continued to develop its How are we doing? patient
feedback programme. In addition to its inpatient and day surgery survey,
How are we doing? was launched this year for outpatients visiting the
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Dental Institute. This year, we also began the process of developing a
standard patient feedback tool for our outpatients. This will be piloted
early in the summer of 2009 with a view to rolling it out in the Autumn of
2009 and will mean that we are asking the majority of patients about their
experiences of care with us. Our comment card scheme also continues to
provide useful feedback and suggestions.
A range of changes have been made as a result of patient feedback:
•

•
•

•
•
•

•

General and Emergency Medicine: Improved systems for
ensuring that patients in the health and aging unit receive
appropriate help to eat their meals. The changes have already
resulted in increased patient satisfaction
Ophthalmology outpatients: removal of televisions from waiting
areas and replacing these with music
Women’s: following staff away days where patients shared their
stories with staff, several changes have been made including
development of an information leaflet “Post Operative Exercises”,
changes to admission letters to patients, changing the temperature
on the ward and introducing “reflective practice” for ward staff
Trust wide: re-locating external smoking cabins away from main
entrances to hospital buildings
Child Health: 3 new play specialists have been employed in child
health
Dental Institute: following comments from patients, Dental have
now introduced processes to improve the patient journey for people
attending with acute dental problems. Booking and triage systems
have been streamlined so that patients have continuity of care from
staff and less waiting. Same day treatment has also been
increased to avoid patients having to return to have their procedure
carried out.
Liver: To improve communication with patients, Dawson Ward now
note what the patient would like to be called by staff on the bed
board.

During this year the Trust’s First Choice programme refocused its work to
improving the patient experience. Working with the patient and public
involvement team, the first phase of this work focused on four key areas:
Learning from others:
We visited a number of high performing NHS Trusts including University
College Hospitals and the Royal Marsden and also private sector
companies such as Tesco.
Patient Experience Report:
In December 2008 we launched a new monthly patient experience report
which integrates patient feedback from Complaints, the Patient Advice and
Liaison Service (PALS), How are we doing? data and patient comments.
The report has data at Trust and Division levels and is a key tool to drive
improvement.
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Patient Engagement Guide:
A guide for King’s staff to help them engage with patients in service
design and evaluation was launched and available to all staff to support
them in engaging with and listening to patients.
Outpatient feedback: we piloted a range of methods for getting patient
feedback in Outpatient areas e.g. patient survey, face to face interviews
following Net Promoter Score methodology, touch screen kiosks
Phase 2 of this programme is working on three major projects to improve
the patient experience here at King’s
Contacting King's: is looking at how we can improve people's contact
with King's through letters to patients, phone calls etc.

Outpatient Transformation: is developing and piloting a new approach
to how patients experience outpatients at King's. We are working with
staff and patients in gastroenterology go come up with ideas on how we
can transform people's experience of attending outpatients at King's

Feedback from outpatients: This project is developing a standard
outpatient feedback tool so that our outpatients can share their views with
us so that we can make improvements to the outpatient experience.
Responding to complaints
Good complaint handling is taken seriously at King’s because we recognise
complaints as a valuable source of patient feedback and they provide us
with the opportunity to reflect on and learn from patients’ experiences. In
2008-09 we received 932 complaints of which 78% were concluded within
25 working days, just short of the Trust’s target of 80%.
Our complaints process is well managed throughout the organisation so
that decisions are taken quickly, things put right where necessary and
lessons learnt for service improvements. In the past year these have
included the introduction of an information leaflet to patients on rollator
frames advising on safe handling and maintenance; nurse handover
arrangements have been reviewed; end of life nurse skills training has
been given to senior nurse staff in General Medicine; dental preassessment for patients attending day surgery has been reviewed to
ensure concerns with anaesthesia are followed up prior to surgery; review
of standardised outpatient letters.
The Trust reviewed and responded to 22 cases which were independently
reviewed by the Healthcare Commission. Of these, two cases were not
upheld by the Healthcare Commission, and two cases were referred back
to the Trust for further resolution.

44

Where recommendations have been made by the Healthcare Commission,
in many cases the Trust had already implemented changes as part of
improvements in service. We have also provided further information and
explanation when requested to the satisfaction of the complainant and the
Healthcare Commission.
Suggestions for improvements have included:
• patient information leaflet to be provided to patients at the point of
discharge
• produce trust wide guidelines for clinicians ordering investigations
following multi disciplinary team meetings
• to ensure counselling is offered routinely to patients whose
eyesight is deteriorating and may benefit from this specialist
service
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7. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS
King’s Health Partners
A major focus for King’s during 2008 has been the development of the
partnership with the other local health trusts (Guy’s and St Thomas’ and
South London and Maudsley) and King’s College London. Our collective
organisation decided to name itself King’s Health Partners and in March 2009
was successfully vetted by an international panel of health experts and
subsequently accredited as an Academic Health Sciences Centre by the
department of health.
With our partners, we bring together three of the country’s most successful
NHS Foundation Trusts and one of the world’s leading research-led
universities. We will become the UK’s largest AHSC, and we are also unique
in providing the full range of clinical specialties and sub-specialties, including
mental health services. These are complemented by major academic
strengths that will allow us to bring service delivery and research together,
pushing the boundaries of medical science, and drive new treatments and
clinical innovation.
We are financially successful organisations, and as Foundation Trusts we
have surpluses to invest. There is a long standing track record of clinical
excellence and innovation that spans all the partners – and with access to a
diverse population of around five million, we have a powerful opportunity to
ensure medical breakthroughs are rapidly transferred from the laboratory
into new treatments that will give our patients access to the best possible
care at the earliest opportunity.
Changes to the NHS in London
The continuing changes in London’s healthcare environment (the setting up
of Healthcare for London) and health economy (Joint PCT Commissioning of
services) have required a flexible and adaptable approach from King’s in the
last year. We have also needed to respond to the changes in the external
environment both nationally and locally.
During 2008/9 Healthcare for London sought to focus the delivery of care for
both Stroke and Major Trauma services into a fewer number of large centres.
King’s successfully bid and was selected for both Stroke and Trauma status
and a public consultation commenced (‘the shape of things to come’) asking
interested stakeholders for their views on the changes. As part of King’s
Health Partners we have returned a favourable response to the consultation
on proposed Stroke services for London and have made substantive
suggestions for the Trauma part of the consultation, which include out
preference for a 3 centre solution.
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We have been working closely with University Hospital Lewisham to
strengthen our links and as a result opened 2 additional wards on their
campus which have been managed by King’s staff and supported by the
Lewisham teams. This helped to relieve capacity pressures at King’s ensuring
patients were not cancelled and that acutely ill patients could be admitted
whilst patients who were over their acute phase of illness or surgical
procedure have been able to receive full rehabilitation before going home.
Patients and staff feedback has been very positive.
King’s has continued to work closely with the other acute hospitals in outer
South East London (now named the South London NHS Trust after the 3 way
merger of Princess Royal Hospital, Queen Mary’s Hospital and Queen
Elizabeth Hospital) to establish clinical networks and provide seamless care
for patients, being actively involved in ‘a picture of health’ process for
reviewing service configuration across the South London sector.
We provide specialist services, such as renal and cardiac care, for other local
hospitals and are developing further networks with partner hospitals in both
the Stroke and Trauma centre networks.
Primary/secondary care interface
King’s are working with Primary Care (PCTs and GPs) to redesign care
pathways that enable the shift of care closer to home, in a primary or
community setting or at home where possible.
Redesigned care pathways aim to ensure patients receive the most
appropriate care in the most appropriate location and help to achieve the18
week wait target, examples include:
•

Musculoskeletal Clinical Assessment Service continues to be led by a
consultant physiotherapist who assesses and treats patients within 2
weeks. This reduces demand for orthopaedic and rheumatology outpatient clinics and reduces waiting times for those patients who really
need to be seen in a hospital

•

Kings has been working with PCTs and individual GP practices to
transfer care from hospital to primary care for patients with stable
diabetes and kidney disease. This involves development of integrated
or shared models of care and ensures patients get quick access to
secondary care when needed. Further development will be supported
by education and training between hospital and primary care teams

•

Enhanced GP direct referral access to diagnostics so patients are
adequately pre-tested before they see the hospital consultant

•

Development of more community based midwifery led services are
planned
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Social and Community issues
As a large, busy hospital embedded in a diverse local community, King’s
regards community relations as key to its growth and development as a
Foundation Trust and large local employer.
King’s regularly attends and makes submissions to overview and scrutiny
committees for Lambeth and Southwark. This year we hosted a visit for
committee members from Lambeth featuring a tour of our services including
stroke and sexual health. This was followed by a meeting with our Board
Directors.
We regularly attend meetings of local community groups such as the
Camberwell Society, SE5 Forum and Friends of Ruskin Park to give feedback
and update them on developments at the hospital.
This year we have worked with these community groups to campaign on
issues like crime, local public transport and rail services.
Details of any consultations in the previous year, consultations in
progress
a) Proposals to re-develop King’s Emergency Department.
The aim of the project is to:
•

Improve services and facilities within the emergency department for
mental health service users, which was an element of the
implementation plan supporting the closure of the emergency clinic at
the Maudsley Hospital

•

Look at the provision of urgent care services for people who attend the
Emergency Department with primary care needs

•

Make improvements to the physical environment and organisational
processes of the department to benefit all service users.

This consultation was a joint project between four local NHS organisations in
South London. The partner organisations are King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLAM),
NHS Southwark and NHS Lambeth.
A period of pre consultation engagement was carried out in 2008 to inform
the drafting of the proposals which would go forward for formal public
consultation.
Based on the feedback at the pre consultation stage of the process and work
with staff and a user reference group, a proposed layout plan and a series of
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other service improvements were developed, addressing the specific areas
which participants had identified as in need of improvement.
This is the proposal for redeveloping the department which was then put
forward for public consultation.
The formal consultation ran from 16 January to 17 April 2009.
Overall nearly 1,000 individuals or groups were proactively contacted or
engaged to encourage them to participate. They were invited to events,
offered meetings, sent consultation materials, visited by the project team
and engaged at public drop in events.
Responses to the consultation will be written up and inform development of
final plans and their implementation
b)

Single Equality Scheme

We also consulted with local stakeholders on our draft single equality
scheme, including key local BME and disability groups, statutory partners and
foundation trust members.
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8. NHS FOUNDATION TRUST CODE OF GOVERNANCE
The Trust became an NHS Foundation Trust on 1 December 2006 under the
Health and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003, as
superseded by the National Health Service Act 2006. This report covers the
period 01 April 2008 – 31 March 2009.
The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the management and governance of
the Trust. It provides leadership within a framework of prudent and effective
controls that enables risk to be assessed and managed. It is responsible for
ensuring compliance with the terms of authorisation, including the
constitution, with mandatory guidance issued by Monitor, and with relevant
statutory requirements and contractual obligations. Made up of the Chair, six
Non-Executive Directors and six Executive Directors, it also has three other
Directors who regularly attend meetings in an advisory capacity.
All Board Directors have joint responsibility for decisions. The Executive
Directors manage the day-to-day running of the Trust, while the Chair and
Non-Executive Directors provide operational and Board level experience
gained from other public and private sector bodies. Among their skills are
accountancy, audit, education, management consultancy, engineering and
medicine and industrial relations.
The full-time Executive Directors have extensive experience as NHS
Directors, in addition to significant public and private sector experience. They
have a deservedly high reputation in their respective professional fields and
the Board considers that there is a good balance of skills represented by both
Non-Executive and Executive Board members.
The Board has a Vice-Chair, who has been designated as the Senior
Independent Director. One of the six Non-Executive Directors is a
representative of King’s College London, the Trust’s University Medical and
Dental School. All Non-Executive Directors are considered by the Board to be
independent. Non-Executive Directors’ terms of office are currently four
years. They are appointed by the Board of Governors who may also
terminate their appointment.
During the reporting year, 2 separate posts of Director of Operations and
Director of Nursing at Board level were created (previously the combined
post of Director of Operations and Nursing), with a commensurate increase of
1 in the number of Non-Executive Directors. The proposal was approved by
the Remuneration and Appointments Committee, the Board of Governors and
the Board of Directors prior to submission to Monitor for formal approval. The
Trust’s constitution was subsequently amended.
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Evaluation of Performance
A programme of Board evaluation continued during the year beginning with
an independent review commissioned from the Audit Commission taking into
account the provisions of Monitor’s Code of Governance. The evaluation
included a survey and interviews with Board members and a facilitated
workshop in September 2008. A further planned workshop was postponed
from spring 2009 following changes to the Board of Directors and, pending
substantive appointments to Director posts, and will be held later in the year.
All Executive and Non-Executive Directors have an annual performance
appraisal and a personal development plan, which forms the basis of their
individual development. The performance of Executive Directors is reviewed
by the Chief Executive and considered by the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee in relation to remuneration. During 2008/09, a
process has been followed for the evaluation of the Chair and Non-Executive
Directors, having been agreed in consultation with the Governors.
A copy of the register of interests for members of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Governors, and a record of attendance at Board of Directors,
Board of Governors and Board Committee meetings is kept by the Trust
Secretary. Arrangements to view the register may be made by contacting
the Secretary on 020 3299 4939.
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Board of Directors
Non-Executive Directors
Michael Parker (Chair) is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants and a Registered Auditor. He served as a Non-Executive
Director and Vice Chair of Guy’s and St. Thomas’s NHS Trust before
being appointed as Chair of King’s in 2002. During the year, Michael became
a Director of KCH Commercial Services; a member of the Board Leadership
Programme; an advisor to the NHS London Provider Agency; member of
ACCA Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee and ACCA
Health Panel. He is also a member of the Appointments Commission’s
National Equality & Diversity Committee. Michael’s term of office will end in
November 2010.
F (Chair), I (Chair), R (Chair), and E
Robert Foster is a Commissioner of the National Lottery Commission; a NonExecutive Director of the Jersey Competition Regulatory Authority,
and a member of the Advisory Council of Oxford Capital Partners.
Previously, he was Chief Executive of the UK Competition
Commission; and a Senior Civil Servant in the Cabinet Office and DBERR. He
is a Chartered Engineer and was an engineering manager in the electronics
and telecommunications industries. Robert is Vice Chair and Senior
Independent Director. Robert was originally appointed as Non-Executive
Director on 18 March 2004, and was re-appointed in March 2008. His current
term of office will end in 2012.
P (Chair), A and R.
Professor Alan McGregor is Professor of Medicine at King’s College
London and Campus Dean for the Denmark Hill site. In addition, he
is an Honorary Consultant Physician at King’s College Hospital.
Nationally he has chaired numerous Boards and Committees for bodies
including the Medical Research Council and the Department of Health. Alan
has been a Non-Executive Director of King’s since 2003. He was re-appointed
in 2007 and his current term of office will end in October 2011.
G (Chair), P and R.
Maxine James is an IMC registered consultant who has been involved
in management development for voluntary and community
organisations and small businesses for over 20 years. She was a
member of DTI’s Ethnic Minority Business Forum for four years, and is Chair
of Ethnic Mutual, a community development finance initiative and Vice Chair
of Julian’s Primary School. Maxine has been a Non-Executive Director of
King’s since 2004 and was re-appointed in May 2008 and her current term of
office will end in 2012.
E (Chair), G, F and R.
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Rita Donaghy, until November 2007, was Chair of the Advisory,
Conciliation and Arbitration Services (ACAS).
Prior to this
appointment, she was President of the TUC and served on the
National Executive Council of NALGO/UNISON, the Low Pay Commission and
the Committee on Standards in Public Life where she also served as Acting
Chair in 2007. She is currently Chair of a Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) Inquiry into construction fatal accidents. Rita joined the Trust as a
Non-Executive Director in 2005 and her current term of office will end in
October 2009.
A, F, G and R.
Since 2005, Martin West has been a partner in the strategic
consulting team at Drivers Jonas Property Consultants. He is a
qualified management accountant and chartered civil engineer. He
currently serves as an independent board member and Chair of the
services committee for Willow Housing & Care Ltd. He is also a member of
the Audit Committee for Network Housing Group. Martin joined the Board in
July 2007 and his current term of office will end in 2011.
A (Chair), F, I , E and R
Guide to Committees
A - Audit
R - Remuneration & Appointments
F - Finance
I - Investment
G - Governance
P - Performance
E - Equality & Diversity
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Executive Directors
Malcolm Lowe-Lauri (Chief Executive to 05 May 2008) started his
career with the NHS in 1980. His positions have included the role
of Divisional Manager at King’s between 1992 and 1995. In 1995
Malcolm became Chief Executive at Peterborough Hospitals Trust. He
returned to King’s as Chief Executive in 2002 and resigned in May 2008 to
take up the role of CEO at University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust.
Tim Smart (Chief Executive since November 2008) has had a
successful career with Shell and BT before joining KCH as Chief
Executive in November 2008. He brings with him a wealth of
experience in customer service and satisfaction, developing
commercial partnerships, and team and people development. He has
worked in the Middle East, the Netherlands and the US. He also has
experience as a non executive Director of a US-listed financial services
company, and he is a Trustee of two UK charities.
Jacqueline Docherty DBE (Deputy Chief Executive/Executive
Director of Nursing and Operations) is a registered nurse and
held senior management positions in healthcare organisations in
Scotland before joining the executive team at King’s in 1996.
Following the resignation of Malcolm Lowe-Lauri in May 2008,
Jacqueline was Acting Chief Executive from 05 May to 31 October 2008.
Jacqueline left King’s in February 2009 to take up the role of interim Chief
Executive of West Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust.
Simon Taylor (Chief Financial Officer) has worked at King’s for 18
years holding positions as Financial Controller and Deputy
Director of Finance before becoming Director of Finance in 2002.
In early 2009, his role was expanded to become Chief Financial Officer
with the additional responsibility of overseeing the Trust’s commercial
developments. Simon is a Director of KCH Commercial Services and its
subsidiary, Agnentis Limited.
Professor John Moxham (Executive Medical Director) has been at
King’s in a number of different roles since 1982. He became
Executive Medical Director in 2003 after having served some years
as a Non-Executive Director representing the medical school. John is the
Executive Lead for Clinical Governance and Infection Prevention and
Control.
Michael Griffin (Executive Director of Human Resources) held a
number of senior management posts in the private sector before
joining King’s as Director of Human Resources in 1994. Michael
resigned from King’s on 31 March 2009 to join Imperial Healthcare as
Director of Human Resources.
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John Watson - Acting Director of Operations, 23 Feb 2009 - 31 March
2009
Paula Townsend - Acting Director of Nursing, 23 Feb 2009 - 31 March
2009
Non-Voting Directors
Roland Sinker (Joint Strategy Director) joined the Trust in 2005.
Roland originally trained as a lawyer with Linklaters before
becoming a management consultant with McKinsey & Co. Roland
is a Director of KCH Commercial Services and its subsidiary, Agnentis. He
was employed as Joint Strategy Director with Guy's and St Thomas' NHS
Foundation Trust until 18th December 2008. Since then, he has been
employed as Transitional Strategy Director of King's Health Partners.
Ahmad Toumadj (Director of Capital, Estates and Facilities) is a
Post-graduate from the Bartlett School of Architecture at UCL and
a Fellow of Chartered Institute of Building. After working in the
construction industry, he joined the NHS in 1980 and King’s in 1997.
Jane Walters (Director of Corporate Affairs and Trust Secretary)
has worked at King’s since 1992, holding positions as Business
Manager and Head of Corporate Services. Her earlier career was in
local government, where she held a variety of roles in corporate
governance and quality assurance. She was appointed Director of
Corporate Affairs at King’s in 2004.
Zoe Lelliott - Acting Director of Strategy, 16 Feb 2009 - 31 March 2009
Meetings and Committees
The Board held 12 meetings during 2008/09. Some of the work of the
Board of Directors is delegated to Committees, which also meet regularly
and are each chaired by a Non-Executive Director of the Trust. There is a
standing item at every Board meeting to receive reports and minutes of
meetings from Board Committees.
The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the externally
reported performance of the Trust and provides independent assurance to
the Board of Directors on a range of areas including internal control;
external assurance of our risk management processes; internal and
external audit, and financial reporting.
The Remuneration and Appointments Committee agrees, on behalf
of the Board of Directors, the remuneration and terms of service of the
Executive Directors, and, together with the Chief Executive, forms the
panel for Executive Director appointments.
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The Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing
the effectiveness of governance and risk management structures and
systems, to ensure they are embedded across the Trust.
The Performance Committee reviews the performance of the Trust and
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors for approval.
The Finance Committee reviews financial matters in detail and make
recommendations to the Board of Directors for approval.
The Investment Committee advises the Board on the Trust’s
investment strategy.
The Equality & Diversity Committee monitors equality and diversity
issues relating to the provision of services to patients, employment and
procurement practice within the context of the Trust’s Diversity Strategy.

Attendance at Board of Directors and Committee Meetings
Board Member

Michael Parker
Alan McGregor
Robert Foster
Rita Donaghy
Maxine James
Martin West
Malcolm Lowe-Lauri
(until 05 May 2008)
Tim Smart (from 01
Nov 2008)
John Moxham
Jacqueline Docherty
(until 23 Feb 2009)
Mike Griffin
Simon Taylor
Paula Townsend
(from 23 Feb 2009)
John Watson (from
23 Feb 2009)
Jane Walters 1
Ahmad Toumadj 1
Roland Sinker 1
(until 18 Dec 2008)
Zoe Lelliott 1
(from 16 Feb 2009)

Board of
Directors
(Actual/
Possible)
12/12
9/12
12/12
10/12
10/12*
12/12

Audit
Committee
(Actual/
Possible)

2

4/4
3/4
4/4

Remuneration
&
Appointments
Committee 2
5/5
2/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5

0 /1
4/5
8/12
10 /10
12 /12
12/12
1/1
1/1
12/12
11/12
5/9
2/2

1 Non-voting Directors.
2 Attendance of non-members is not shown.
* Absence included 1 meeting where part of meeting attended (private session)
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Audit Committee
The Chair and members of the Audit Committee in 2008/09 were:
Martin West (Chair) – Non-Executive Director
Robert Foster – Trust Vice Chair
Rita Donaghy - Non-Executive Director
Other persons may attend at the invitation of the Chair but they are not
members of the Committee.
The Audit Committee meets at least quarterly and comprises independent
Non-Executive Directors only. The Board is satisfied that at least one
member of the Audit Committee has recent and relevant financial
experience. The Chief Executive, Executive Director of Finance and
Director of Corporate Affairs regularly attend meetings by invitation,
together with representatives of external and internal audit and the
manager of the local counter fraud team.
The Audit Committee monitors the externally reported financial
performance of the Trust and provides independent assurance to the
Board on a range of areas. These include internal control and risk
management, internal audit, external audit and financial reporting. King’s
continued to closely monitor the effectiveness of internal control and audit
processes during 2008/09.
The Committee undertook an annual self-assessment, reviewed its terms
of reference and presented an annual report of its activity to the Board of
Directors. The Committee oversees the work of the Trusts Counter Fraud
team. The Trust has a policy of zero tolerance towards fraud and always
prosecutes if economically viable to do so.
During the 2008/09 reporting year, the Audit Committee considered the
following issues:
Internal Audit
• Internal auditors’ review of operational, corporate and support
systems.
• Board Assurance Framework, Statement of Internal Control and
Standards for Better Health
• Financial reporting
• Core financial systems
• ICT Business Continuity
• Procurement
• Data Centre Migration
• Electronic Staff Records
• Patient Experience
• Self-certification and cleanliness
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External Audit
• Audit process – changes in accounting standards and codes of
practice
• Risk assessment
• Reviews of internal controls that significantly affect financial
statements
• Review of accounts prior to Board approval
Independence of external auditor
The Trust’s external auditors, the Audit Commission, have communicated
the following matters to the Audit Committee:
• The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and independence identified
by the auditor, including consideration of all relationships between the
Trust, directors and the auditor;
• Any safeguards adopted and the reasons why they are considered to be
effective;
• Any independent partner review;
• The overall assessment of threats and safeguards; and
• Information about the general policies and processes for maintaining
objectivity and independence.
The Audit Commission are not aware of any relationships that may affect
the independence and objectivity of the team, and which are required to
be disclosed under auditing and ethical standards.
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8.1 NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance – Compliance
Statement
Principles of the Code
The Board of Directors considers that it was compliant with the
Principles of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance during
the period 01 April 2008 – 31 March 2009.
The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is
responsible for the exercise of the powers and the performance of the
NHS Foundation Trust, for ensuring the highest standards of corporate
governance, and that the Trust operates within a framework of prudent
and effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and managed.
The Board comprises the Chairman, 6 Executive Directors and 6 NonExecutive Directors and is collectively responsible for the success of the
Trust. The Directors have a range of skills and experience and each
brings independent judgment and expertise to the Board’s discussions and
decision making.
The composition of the Board and the experience of the Directors are
described in p.52 of the Annual Report, which also includes information
about the Committees of the Board, their membership and attendance by
individual directors.
The Board meets regularly and has a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for its decision. The Board delegates other matters
to the Executive Directors and other senior managers. The Board has 12
scheduled meetings each year.
The Board of Governors
The Board of Governors is responsible for representing the interests of
NHS Foundation Trust members and stakeholder organisations in the
governance of the Trust. They exercise statutory powers, such as the
appointment of Non-Executive Directors and the External Auditor.
The Board of Governors comprises 12 elected Public Governors, 6 elected
Patient Governors, 6 elected Staff Governors and 9 appointed Stakeholder
representatives.
The Board of Governors is scheduled to meet 4 times a year. In the
period from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 it met 6 times. Its sub
committees, the Nominations Committee, Membership Committee, Patient
Experience and Safety Committee and Strategy Committee met as
required, and other working groups also met, including the Transport
Group.
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Details of the composition of the Board, Governor attendance at meetings
and the activities of the Board of Governors are included in pages 67-71
the Annual Report.
Information, development and evaluation
The Boards of Directors and Governors are supplied with information in a
timely manner and in an appropriate form and quality to enable them to
discharge their duties. The information needs of both Boards are subject
to periodic review.
The Board of Directors keeps its performance, that of its committees and
individual Directors under regular review. P.53 of the annual report
contains details of the processes the Trust has followed. During 2009/10,
the Board of Governors will agree a process for the formal evaluation of its
performance following elections in autumn 2008.
Accountability and Audit
The Board of Governors has appointed The Audit Commission as the
Trust’s External Auditor. The Board maintains a sound system of internal
control and has appointed KPMG as its internal auditors. The Board
presents a balanced and understandable assessment of the Trust’s
position and prospects, and ensures effective scrutiny of finance and
operational matters through regular reporting through its designated
Committees to the Board of Directors.
Relations with Stakeholders
The Board of Directors recognises the importance of effective
communication with a wide range of stakeholders, including members of
the Trust.
The Annual Public meeting is used as an opportunity to communicate with
members, in addition to regular written communication, member events
and the annual Open Day. A series of community events are held
annually, to enable member feedback into the Trust’s Annual Plan.
The Board of Directors and Board of Governors enjoy a close working
relationship. Members of the Board of Directors regularly attend Board of
Governors meetings, and Governors are actively encouraged to attend
Board of Directors meetings. The Annual Plan submitted to Monitor has
had regard to the views of the Board of Governors and members.
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Provisions of the Code
The Board of Directors considers that it was from 01 April 2008 –
31 March 2009 fully compliant with the provisions of the NHS
Foundation Trust Code of Governance with the following
exceptions:
A.3.1
and
A.3.2

Independent Non-Executive Directors and Non-Executive Director
majority
The Board of Directors should identify in the annual report each
Non-Executive Director it considers to be independent. The Board
should determine whether the Director is independent in character
and judgement and whether there are relationships or
circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect,
the director’s judgement. Such reasons include being an appointed
representative of the Foundation Trust’s university medical or
dental school.
As a university teaching hospital, one of the Board’s Non-Executive
Directors, Professor Alan McGregor, is a representative of King’s College,
University of London. However, the Board is confident that Professor
McGregor is independent in character and judgement, and declines to
describe this Non-Executive Director as ‘non-independent’.
At least half the Board, excluding the Chairman, should comprise
Non-Executive Directors determined by the Board to be
independent.
The Board comprises 6 Executive Directors and 6 Non-Executive Directors
considered by the Board to be independent, excluding the Chairman. The
constitution gives the Chair a second and casting vote.

A.3.3

The Board should appoint one of the independent Non-Executive
Directors to be the Senior Independent Director. The Senior
Independent Director could be the deputy chairman.
The Board has appointed a Vice-Chair, who is also designated as the
Senior Independent Director. It has not appointed a separate Senior
Independent Director.

C.2.1

The Chief Executive and other executive directors should be
subject to re-appointment at intervals of no more than 5 years.
Executive Directors are employed on substantive contracts and are not
subject to reappointment at intervals of no more than 5 years. The
exception is the Executive Medical Director, who is appointed on a fixed
term 3-year contract, which may be renewed by agreement.

C.2.2

Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, should be
appointed by the Board of Governors for specified terms subject to
re-appointment thereafter at intervals of no more than three years.
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The Board of Governors has approved 4 year terms of office for NonExecutive appointments, subject to a maximum of two four-year terms.
D
2.2

Led by the Chairman, the Board of Governors should periodically
assess their collective performance and they should regularly
communicate to members details on how they have discharged
their responsibilities.
The process of evaluation commenced during 2007/08 with a joint
workshop of both the Board of Governors and Board of Directors. This
process of evaluation will be followed up in 2009/10 following Governor
elections in Autumn 2008. The Governors regularly communicate to
members how they have discharged their responsibilities.
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8.2 Remuneration Report
The remuneration and expenses of the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors are determined by the Board of Governors, taking account of
relevant market data, including the Foundation Trust Network’s
remuneration survey.
Remuneration for the Trust’s most senior managers (Directors accountable
to the Chief Executive) is determined by the Trust’s Remuneration and
Appointments Committee, which consists of the Chairman and the NonExecutive Directors. The table on page 56 records meeting attendance.
The Remuneration and Appointments Committee is informed by executive
salary surveys, by periodic assessments conducted by independent
remuneration consultants and by the salary awards and terms and
conditions applying to other NHS staff groups. Affordability together with
an assessment of both individual and collective performance are also
taken into account.
The Trust’s strategy and business planning process sets key business
objectives which, in turn, inform individual and collective objectives for
senior managers. Performance is closely monitored and discussed
throughout the year and is also part of the annual appraisal process.
Details of remuneration, including the salaries and pension entitlements of
the Board of Directors, are published in the annual accounts on page 97.
Remuneration of the most senior managers includes a bonus of up to 10%
of basic salary, which is performance related.
The only non-cash element of the most senior managers’ remuneration
packages is pension related benefits accrued under the NHS Pension
Scheme. Contributions are made by both the employer and employee in
accordance with the rules of the scheme.
The Executive Medical Director is an academic consultant within the Trust,
whose role is undertaken on a fixed term, three-year contract which may
be renewed by agreement. This contract is next due for review/renewal in
March 2012. Additional paid programmed activities are provided in the
Director’s job plan to enable the fulfilment of these additional
responsibilities. In addition the MD receives a pay supplement and is
eligible for the performance bonus calculated on the value of the
supplement only.
The Joint Strategy Director is a joint appointment with Guy’s & St.
Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust and is currently seconded to the Academic
Health Sciences Centre. He is engaged through a third party consultancy
on a fixed term contract, with termination of the contract via three
months notice given by either party.
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Executive Director
Executive Medical
Director
Director of Strategic
Development

Date in post
1 April 2003
28 November
2005

Unexpired
Term
3 years

Notice
3 months

n/a

3 months

All of the other most senior managers are substantive employees of the
Trust employed on open-ended contracts of employment which can be
terminated by the Trust with up to twelve months’ notice.

Signed:

Tim Smart
Chief Executive
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Board of Governors
The Board of Governors comprises twelve public, six patient and six staff
representatives elected by Membership constituencies, and nine
representatives nominated by stakeholder partners. As guardians of the
community interest, the Board of Governors ensures that the needs of
Members are considered in the planning of future services. Governors also
feed back information to their Members about the Trust, its vision and
performance.
All Governors initially served a two-year term, ending on 30 November
2008 and were then eligible to stand for a further three-year period.
During the year, elections were held in accordance with the Trust’s
constitution and election rules for those constituencies. Nominations were
invited for all eligible vacancies and elections were held where the number
of nominations exceeded the number of vacancies. The results of the
election are show below.
Constituencies
Involved
Public: Lambeth South
Public: Southwark
Central
Public: Southwark
North
Public: Southwark
South
Patient
Staff: Support Staff
Staff: Managerial,
Administration and
Clerical

Number of
members in
constituency
638
900

Number
of seats
contested
2
2

Number of
contestant
s
3
5

Election
Turnout
%
33.2
25.8

942

2

5

25.6

942

2

6

34.5

4,116
55
1,367

6
1
1

14
2
2

29.4
58.2
18.1

In Lambeth North (Public), Medical and Dentistry (Staff), Allied Health
Professionals (Staff) and Nursing and Midwifery (Staff), there was no
contest because the number of nominations equalled the number of
vacancies.
The Board of Governors is responsible for the appointment, remuneration
and removal of the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors. During
2008-09, the Board of Governors approved the appointment by the NonExecutive Directors of Tim Smart as Chief Executive, the reappointment of
Maxine James, Non-Executive Director, and agreed remuneration for the
Chair and Non-Executive Directors.
Other duties include appointment of the Trust’s auditors, and receipt and
consideration of the annual report, annual accounts and auditor’s report to
the accounts. Throughout the year, Governors received regular updates
on the Trust’s business planning process and their comments were
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incorporated into the Trust’s Annual Plan submitted to Monitor in May
2009.
In order to fulfil their duties, Governors need to understand how the Trust
operates and the external factors that influence its development. During
2008/09, Governors have been involved in a wide variety of activities,
including membership of Governor committees and working groups, sitting
on Trust committees such as Patient /Carer Experience and participation
in the Staff Awards Scheme and in work which informed the Governor
commentary on Standards for Better Health. Induction has been held for
new Governors, and there is a regular programme of ongoing induction for
all Governors via ‘Directors’ Surgeries’. All Governors are encouraged to
attend the Trust’s corporate induction. A Governors’ handbook has also
been produced and given to all Governors, which contains information on
the roles and responsibilities of Governors as well as the Trust’s structure,
strategic direction, operation and key policies.
The Trust’s growing alliance with nearby healthcare and research
organisations, notably the partners that make up King’s Health Partners
Academic Health Sciences Centre and the recent formal accreditation of
our AHSC by the Department of Health, offers an opportunity to create
truly world-class services bringing the best of research and clinical
advances to our local population and patients.
Governors have been involved in discussions about the Academic Health
Sciences Centre throughout, and fully support its development. Member
events were again held across Lambeth, Southwark and in Beckenham,
Kent, to hear at first hand the views of members on these developments
and to provide information about King’s strategy and future service plans
to Foundation Trust Members. These events were in the main well
attended, and they also gave Governors and Trust Directors an
opportunity to come together and communicate King’s vision and future
plans.
At the request of Governors, Directors’ surgeries are held on issues of
interest, such as the AHSC, Performance, Finance and the annual report
and accounts. These are timed to link with the Governors’ work
programme. There is also, a ‘Governor-only’ area on the Trust’s website
for sharing information electronically and for online discussion. Many
Governors have also attended external events hosted by the Healthcare
Commission, the Foundation Trust Governor’s Association, the Foundation
Trust Network and the Audit Commission during 2008/09.
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Constituency

PUBLIC
Mr Rashmi Agrawal
Mr Andy Alatise
Ms Hedi Argent 1
Ms Cherry Forster1
Mr Stephen Haines
Mr Tom Hoffman 1
Ms Saleha Jaffer 1
Mrs Anne
Macnaughton 1
Mr Timothy Mason 1
Mr Michael Mitchell 1
Mrs Ann Mullins 1
Mrs Christiana Okoli

Lambeth Central
Southwark Central
Southwark Central
Lambeth Central
Southwark Central
Southwark North
Lambeth South
Southwark North
Lambeth South
Southwark South
Lambeth North

1

Lambeth North

Ms Michelle Pearce
Mrs Victoria Sheard
Mr Godwin Ubiaro

Southwark South
Southwark South
Lambeth Central

PATIENT
Mrs Joy Cooper
(resigned 30 June
2008)
Mr Paul Corben 1
Mr Thomas Duffy
Mr Andy Glyn 1
Mr John Harris
(until 30 Nov 2008)
Mrs June Harrison
Ms Pida Ripley
Mrs Laurel
Robertson
Mrs Jan Thomas 2
Mrs Sue Yoxall
STAFF
Mr Anthony Agosu 1
Mrs Raziye Dowdall
(resigned 29
September 2008)
Professor Bruce
Hendry 1
Mrs Rowenna
Hughes 1
Mrs Fiona Hunter
Dr Mark Monaghan

1

Attendance at
meetings
(Actual/Possible)

2/2
2/2
5/6
6/6
3/4
5/6
5/6
5/6
4/6
5/6
6/6
5/6
1/2
3/4
0/4

Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient

1/2
4/6
2/2
5/6
4/4
2/4
2/2

Patient
Patient

1/4
1/2
2/2

Nurses and Midwives

5/6

Administration, Clerical and
Management
Medical & Dentistry
Support Staff

2/4
4/6
6/6

Nurses and Midwives

4/6

Allied Health Professionals

4/6
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Administration, Clerical and
Managerial

2/2

Lambeth Primary Care Trust

2/6

Mr Stuart Bell

South London & Maudsley NHS
Foundation Trust

4/6

Mr David Noakes

Southwark Council

Professor Sir
Lawrence Freedman

King's College London

Ms Mee Ling Ng

Southwark Primary Care Trust

Cllr Betty EvansJacas

Lambeth Council

Mr Brady Pohle
NOMINATED
Mr Kevin Barton

3/6
4/6
4/6
4/6

Professor David
Sines

London South Bank University

Mr Frank Wood

Joint Staff Committee

4/6
6/6

1

re-elected Nov 2008
Jan Thomas was appointed as a Patient Governor w.e.f. 01 Dec 08 Previously represented PPI forum
2

To view the register of interests for our Board of Governors, please
contact the Trust Secretary 020 3299 4939.
Governor Groups and Committees
Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee of the Board of Governors, was established in
2007 and comprises:
Michael Parker
Ann Mullins
Dr Mark Monaghan
June Harrison (until 30 Nov 2008)
Tom Hoffman (from January 2009)
Malcolm Lowe-Lauri
(until 05 May 2008)
Jacqueline Docherty (until 01
November 2008)
Tim Smart (from 01 November
2008)
Mike Griffin (until 31 March 2009)

Trust Chair (and Chair of the
Committee)
Public Governor (and Vice Chair of
the Committee)
Staff Governor
Patient Governor
Public Governor
Chief Executive
Acting Chief Executive
Chief Executive
Executive Director of Human
Resources
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The Committee met twice in 2008/09. The work of the Committee this
year has included the following:
•

review of remuneration for the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors

•

recommendation of a process for the reappointment of the Chair
and Non-Executive Directors

•

consideration of a process for the appointment of the Chief
Executive, including selection of a Governor to observe the process

•

Reappointment of Maxine James, Non-Executive Director.

The agreed process of appointment to Non-Executive Director posts
includes open advertising and the use of an external search consultancy.
Governors contribute to a variety of issues through working groups and
committees. These include:
Transport Working Group, which assesses local transport issues and is
developing a lobbying strategy to influence key decision-makers and help
improve access to King’s. The group has helped to speed up the redevelopment project for Denmark Hill railway station and to press for the
continuation of rail services for patients and staff.
Patient Experience and Safety Committee, to act as an expert
reference group for the Trust’s planned activity around Patient Experience
and Safety and to act as a focal point for the Governors’ commentary to
the Trust’s Standards for Better Health (SfBH) annual declaration.
Membership Committee, which reviews the Membership Development
Strategy ensuring that Membership continues to be representative;
identifies ways in which the Membership can be more actively involved
and facilitates communication between Governors and the Membership.
Strategy Committee, which reviews the trust’s strategy and Annual
Plan, and feeds back to the Board of Governors
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8.3 Membership Report
Membership development
The Trust’s Membership Development Strategy was reviewed during the
year. The 3 year strategy (2008-11) outlines our plans for involving and
growing the Membership.
This strategy is based on the following principles:
•
•

•
•

•

•

To make King’s College Hospital a successful membership
organisation
Our membership is as representative as possible in terms of
disability, age, gender, sexuality, ethnic background and faith,
reflecting the local community which King’s serves.
Our membership is involved in the work of King’s and has a real say
in how the organisation develops.
The Board of Governors has a key role in overseeing the
development of the membership and reviewing progress against
targets.
We are committed to achieving our objectives but recognise that the
process of building an active membership requires long term
commitment, resources, and investment.
We aim to promote understanding of how membership links local
people to King’s.

The following objectives will be the
development over the next three years:
•
•

•

•

main

focus

for

membership

To develop a membership that is representative and reflective of
the communities served by King’s.
To develop an informed membership by providing appropriate,
accurate and timely information to our members to assist them in
making informed contributions.
To develop an involved membership where as many members as
possible are actively engaged in the development of King’s and its
activities.
To maintain an efficient and cost-effective structure for managing
and developing our membership systems.

These objectives will be supported by a Membership Development Action
Plan which will be reviewed by the Membership Committee of the Board of
Governors who will report progress annually to the Board of Governors.
Our Membership is split into three constituencies: public, patient and staff.
Public Membership - anyone who is 16 years old or over and lives within
the Boroughs of Lambeth or Southwark is entitled to become a Public
Member.

70

Patient Membership - anyone who is 16 years old or over and lives
outside of Lambeth and Southwark and has been a patient of King’s in the
last six years or has been a carer of a patient of King’s in the last six
years can become a Member.
Staff Membership - all staff of the Trust who have contracts with no
fixed term are automatically Members unless they choose to opt out. Staff
Membership also includes employees of other companies based at King’s
who provide services for the Trust.
At 31 March 2009 the Trust had 14,733 Members, comprising:
•
•
•

6292 - Staff
4343 - Public
4098 - Patient

The number of members in our public and patient categories rose last
year. We undertook membership recruitment campaigns in the spring and
autumn of 2008 resulting in over 1,600 new members and representing
an increase of 22% in total membership since 2007/08. 359 (5.0%)
public and patient members left during 2008/09. Therefore, there was a
net increase of 17% in total membership during the year.
A representative Membership
Our Public and Patient Membership is largely representative of the
communities we serve in terms of ethnicity and gender. However, we
have fewer Members in the 16-35 age category than in the local area. We
have been trying to address this by collaborative working with local
universities and further education colleges including King’s College
London, London South Bank University and Lambeth College to promote
membership and involvement to younger people. We also aim to increase
membership through wider distribution of application forms with patient
surveys and publications.

In terms of younger members aged between 16 and 35 (public and patient),
there has been a doubling in membership from 522 in 2007/08 to 1,046 in
2008/09. This means that we are on track to reach our 3 year target. We are
tracking progress using a more detailed age breakdown than the standard
age categories required by Monitor.
An involved Membership
We undertake a number of regular initiatives. These include:
•

A quarterly newsletter, which updates the Membership on events at
King’s and highlights opportunities to get more involved in the Trust

•

A programme of Members’ seminars on public health and how
services are structured and delivered
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•

A digest of our Annual Report and notification of all Board of
Governor meetings and our annual hospital Open Day

•

A Members’ section on the website giving useful up-to-date
information and news.

Members have also been asked to identify clinical areas of interest to
them and we have recorded this information on our database. By
targeting those Members who already have an established interest in
particular areas, we can both address their desire for further involvement
and our wish to get more user involvement in the day-to-day running of
different areas of the hospital.
Our annual programme of Members’ seminars, now in its third year, has
provided information about specific services and conditions and we have
sought to deepen understanding about King’s with a series of community
events.
These were organised with a primary focus on:
• Engaging the Membership and consult with our constituencies about
our plans for the future
• Providing an opportunity to introduce our Members to the
Governors - their elected representatives;
• Demonstrating how we anticipate our relationship with stakeholders
will develop.
In April and May we held five community meetings at the hospital and in
our membership constituencies for foundation trust members. The aim of
these meetings was to allow members to engage with their governors and
senior managers, give feedback on the Trust’s forward plans and learn
about key clinical services.
Members can contact their Governors via the King’s website, or through
the foundation trust office.
Foundation Trust Office
King’s College Hospital
FREEPOST NAT 7343
London SE5 9BR
Email: members@kch.nhs.uk <mailto:members@kch.nhs.uk>
Tel: 020 3299 4939
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

These accounts, for the year ending March 31 2009, have been prepared by King's College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006.

Signed:

Date:

Tim Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Chief Executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of King's College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
The National Health Services Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS Foundation
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and regularity of
public finances for which they are answerable, and for keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the Accounting Officers'
Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts ("Monitor").
Under the National Health Services Act 2006, Monitor has directed King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to
prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction.
The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of King's College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for
the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS foundation trust
Financial Reporting Manual and in particular to:
• observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and
apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
• make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
• state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS foundation trust Financial Reporting Manual
have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; and
• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable him to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor's NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Signed:

Date:

Tim Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Internal Control
Scope of responsibility
The Board is accountable for internal control. As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the NHS foundation trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding
the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically
and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement
of the policies, aims and objectives of Kings College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in King’s College Hospital HS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March
2009 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme control measures are in place to ensure all
employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with.
Capacity to handle risk
The Trust Board has overall accountability for the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy through the Trust’s Executive Directors.
The Trust’s Medical Director provides the lead, and is supported by a centralised Risk team. The Chief Financial Officer has
accountability for the development, implementation and testing of the Trust’s business continuity plan. The Trust operates a
unified approach covering both clinical and non-clinical risks which are recorded on a computerised risk register. The Trust is
committed to providing a learning environment for all levels of staff, to ensure that good practice is developed and
disseminated to all areas of the organisation. This is achieved by;
• A commitment to individual appraisal and personal development planning for all staff;
• Policies to encourage the reporting and investigation of adverse incidents (inc. near misses)
• A commitment to root cause analysis of problems and incidents and the avoidance of blaming and ‘scape-goating’.
• A range of problem resolution policies and procedures, including capability, raising concerns, harassment and discipline,
which are designed to identify and remedy problems at an early stage.
• A range of individual support mechanisms to encourage individuals to raise concerns about the own performance in ways
which will not threaten their security or livelihood, e.g. appraisal, substance abuse policies, professional counselling and
occupational health services.
• A range of clinical and non-clinical audit mechanisms.
All staff are trained in these policies as part of the corporate and local induction policies and updated via regular staff briefings
and the Trust intranet.
The risk and control framework
The Trust operates a cyclical mechanism for the identification, evaluation and control of risk, facilitated by means of a central
risk register. Local Risk Groups identify risks and potential hazards and formulate actions plans to deal with them. Each risk is
scored on a common basis across the Trust for likelihood and potential impact. If risks cannot be satisfactorily resolved at a
local level, they are considered by the relevant corporate risk management group. Unresolved risks are passed to the
Governance Committee for either acceptance or resolution. If additional resources are required to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level, this is considered by the Business Resource and Strategy Group and, if necessary by the Trust Finance
Committee. Risks that have an above average consequence and likelihood are given priority in the resource allocation
process.
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In 2007/8, the Trust Board identified, by means of a risk identification workshop attended by all Board Members, the key
risks which were likely to prevent achievement of the Trust’s strategic objectives as set out in the Business Plan. These
are regularly reviewed at meetings of the Board of Directors. A full ‘plain sheet’ review of these risk is planned for July
2009, to ensure that these reflect the current priorities for the Trust and to incorporate any potential additional risks arising
from the Trust’s membership of the King’s Health Partners Academic Health Sciences Centre. These risks are also cross
referenced to Standards for Better Health to ensure comprehensive coverage of the Trust’s quality control obligations.
An Assurance Framework has been developed to provide a system of independent assurance that the key risks are
identified, managed and reviewed. These are then cross-referenced to internal control mechanisms designed to manage
these risks and identify any shortfalls. Finally, the means by which the Board can receive independent assurance by
various regulatory organisations is linked to each control and the effect on the overall risk rating for each risk achieved by
successful operation of the control is quantified. The Board is, therefore, able to assure itself that the key risks to its
strategic objectives are identified, managed, monitored and independently reviewed.
The Trust conducted a comprehensive overhaul of its assurance framework in 2004/05, building on findings from the
independent review of its control framework resulting from the application for Foundation Trust status. The main
enhancements were :
• Establishment of a Performance Committee to oversee and challenge all aspects of performance of clinical Divisions.
The committee meets monthly, is chaired by a non-executive director and considers a different area of the organisation
in detail at each meeting;
• Establishment of an internal counter fraud team, assisted by detailed guidance by the Counter Fraud and Security
Management Service. This has increased by a factor of ten, the resources dedicated to counter fraud activity and the
team has recently been designated as a centre of excellent practice;
• A major change in the quality and coverage of financial information considered in detail by the Finance Committee. The
monthly report now considers all aspects of the Trust’s financial performance including a detailed treasury management
review;
• The systematic roll out of the risk register to all areas of the Trust is currently in progress;
• Implementation of an electronic tracking system to ensure all recommendations received as a result of Assurance
reviews are implemented on a timely basis;
• Strengthening of the Business Resource and Strategy Group to incorporate a more disciplined analysis of planned
developments; and
• Inclusion of risk management responsibilities in individual job plans and descriptions.
In a review concluded in April 2008, the Trust’s internal auditors provided ‘substantial assurance’ regarding the operation
of the Trust’s internal control and risk management framework.
During the past year, the Trust has undertaken substantial work in strengthening its Business Continuity Plans, including
the implementation of a new computer based system to ensure that individual plans are coordinated across the Trust and
that they are regularly tested. The Trust plans to seek accreditation for its plans under British Standard BS25999 as soon
as they are complete.
The Trust has made significant efforts in the last year to ensure the security of the information it holds and that is
transmitted to and from its systems. These include the enforcement of encryption for any portable devices used on Trust
systems, encryption for all Trust laptop computers and the implementation of ‘remote wipe’ functionality for smart phones
in the event of their loss or theft.
The Trust is fully compliant with the core Standards or Better Health.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all
employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions
from salary, employer’s contributions and payments in to the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules and that
member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the regulations.
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and human rights
legislation are complied with.
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Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The Board of Directors ensures that resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively by means of regular
Finance and Performance reports. These are considered in detail by the Performance and Finance Committees which are
committees of the Board, chaired by Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee receives regular reports from the
Trust’s Internal Auditors, KPMG, and its External Auditors, the Audit Commission.
First Choice King’s is a multi-year programme designed to improve the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the
organisation. In April 2008, the programme was relaunched with an increased emphasis on patient safety and patient
experience to improve the effectiveness of the Trust's operations together with an information systems workstream to
facilitate the efficient running of the hospital. This programme is overseen by a steering group of the Executive Directors
and the subject of regular reports to the Board of Directors.
The process for producing the Standards for Better Health declaration has been enhanced during the year. Evidence is
collated during the year and reviewed in detail by the Executive Directors and then, subsequently by the Governance
Committee, Audit Committee and Board of Directors. Additional assurance is gathered from the Board of Governors and
other external stakeholders.
Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the executive
managers within the NHS Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework, and comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. I have been
advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the board,
the audit committee and governance committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place.
The action plans are set out in the Board Assurance Framework, together with timescales for implementation and the
responsible Directors. The BAF is linked to the Risk Register and maps the controls to the source of assurance. It is
directly linked to the Trust’s Internal Audit Plan. The Board reviews the proceedings of all its committees at every meeting
and considers and approves the arrangements for risk management in the Trust including the risk framework incorporated
in the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy. Committee Chairs draw the Board’s attention to any matters arising from the
proceedings of their committees which have risk implications at each Board meeting. The Board has reviewed and
amended the Assurance framework to ensure it is comprehensive in its coverage of risks and assurance methodologies
and directly related to the management of key risks to its strategic objectives.
Conclusion
No significant internal control issues have been identified.

Signed:

Date:

Tim Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor’s report to the Board of Governors of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
I have audited the financial statements of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31
March 2009 under the National Health Service Act 2006. The financial statements comprise the Income and
Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and
Losses and the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described as having been
audited.
This report is made solely to the Board of Governors of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as a body in
accordance with paragraph 24(5) of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006. My work was undertaken
so that I might state to the Board of Governors those matters I am required to state to it in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. In those circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by law, I do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Foundation Trust as a body, for my audit work, for the audit report or for the
opinions I form.
Respective responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and auditor
The Accounting Officer’s responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in accordance with directions made
by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (Monitor) are set out in the Statement of Accounting
Officer’s Responsibilities.
My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with statute, the Audit Code for NHS Foundation
Trusts and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
I report to you my opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the
accounting policies directed by Monitor as being relevant to NHS Foundation Trusts. I report whether the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with
the accounting policies directed by Monitor as being relevant to NHS Foundation Trusts. I also report to you
whether, in my opinion, the information which comprises the Chief Executive’s Statement and the Directors’ Report
included in the Annual Report, is consistent with the financial statements.

I review whether the Accounting Officer’s statement on internal control reflects compliance with the requirements of
Monitor contained in the NHS Foundation Trust Financial Reporting Manual 2008/09. I report if it does not meet the
requirements specified by Monitor or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am
aware of from my audit of the financial statements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether
the Accounting Officer’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls. Neither am I required to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

I read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
financial statements. This other information comprises the Chairman’s Statement, Quality Report, Patient Care,
Stakeholder Relations and the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance and the un-audited part of the
Remuneration Report. I consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
Basis of audit opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS
Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor, which requires compliance with International Standards on Auditing (United
Kingdom and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Trust's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I considered necessary
in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that:
• the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error; and
• the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared.
In forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited.
Opinion
In my opinion:
• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust as at 31 March 2009 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted by the Trust;
• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies directed by Monitor as being relevant to NHS Foundation Trusts; and
• information which comprises the Directors’ Report included in the annual report, is consistent with the financial
statements.
Certificate
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the National Health
Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor.

Philip Johnstone
Officer of the Audit Commission
First Floor, Millbank Tower
London
SW1P 4HQ
04-Jun-09
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009

NOTE

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

Income from activities

3

443,042

396,681

Other operating income

4

74,476

74,727

517,518

471,408

(492,726)

(450,316)

24,792

21,092

(25)

0

OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE INTEREST

24,767

21,092

Finance income
Finance costs - interest expense
Other finance costs - unwinding of discount

1,228
(1,383)
(202)

1,005
(1,336)
(214)

24,410

20,547

(9)

0

SURPLUS AFTER TAXATION

24,401

20,547

Public Dividend Capital dividends payable

(8,740)

(7,882)

RETAINED SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

15,661

12,665

Total income
Operating expenses

5-7

OPERATING SURPLUS
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

8

9
15

SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

The notes on pages 12 to 40 form part of these accounts.
All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT
31 March 2009
31 March
2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

10
11

1,010
265,507
266,517

751
252,429
253,180

12
13
19.3

9,433
42,997
33,886
86,316

8,673
34,649
26,087
69,409

(59,427)

(51,037)

26,889

18,372

293,406

271,552

NOTE
FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks and work in progress
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

14

NET CURRENT ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year

14

(17,595)

(12,974)

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

15

(10,147)

(13,152)

265,664

245,426

128,052
79,321
18,785
39,506

122,065
81,082
18,780
23,499

265,664

245,426

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED
FINANCED BY:
TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Donated asset reserve
Income and expenditure reserve

17
18
18
18

TOTAL TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

The financial statements on pages 8 to 11 were approved by the Board on 04 June 2009 and signed on its behalf by:
Signed:

Date:

Tim Smart

Page 82 - Bal Sht

04 June 2009

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2008/2009
STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

Surplus for the financial year before dividend payments

24,401

20,547

Unrealised surplus/(deficit) on fixed asset revaluations

(1,618)

25,601

882

3,603

(507)

(630)

23,158

49,121

Increases in the donated asset due to receipt of donated assets
Reductions in the donated asset reserve due to depreciation,
impairment, and/or disposal of donated assets
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2009
2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

25,692

47,028

1,300
0
(1,173)

1,005
(163)
(1,173)

127

(331)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
(Payments) to acquire tangible fixed assets
(Payments) to acquire intangible assets

(25,231)
(624)

(14,800)
(424)

Net cash (outflow) from capital expenditure

(25,855)

(15,224)

DIVIDENDS PAID

(8,740)

(7,882)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing

(8,776)

23,591

5,987
0
0
9,183
0
0
0
2,124
(719)

1,476
0
(474)
0
0
0
0
991
(645)

16,575

1,348

7,799

24,939

NOTE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE:
Interest received
Interest paid
Interest element of finance leases
Net cash (outflow) from returns on investments and
servicing of finance

19.1

FINANCING
New public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid (not previously accrued)
Public dividend capital repaid (previously accrued)
Loans received from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Other loans received
Loans repaid to Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Other loans repaid
Other capital receipts
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing
Increase/(Decrease) in cash
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1 Accounting Policies
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trusts Financial Reporting Manual which shall be agreed with HM
Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
2008/09 NHS Foundation Trusts Financial Reporting Manual issued by Monitor. The accounting policies
contained in that manual follow UK generally accepted accounting practice for companies (UK GAAP) and HM
Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to
the accounts.
1.1

Going Concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the NHS Foundation Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the accounts.

1.2

Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of fixed assets at their value to the business by reference to their current costs. NHS Foundation
Trusts, in compliance with HM Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual, are not required to comply with the FRS
3 requirements to report 'earnings per share' or historical profits and losses.

1.3

Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be 'discontinued' where they meet all of the following conditions:
a) The sale (this may be at nil consideration for activities transferred to another public sector body) or
termination is completed either in the period or before the earlier of three months after the commencement of
the subsequent period and the date on which the financial statements are approved.
b) If a termination, the former activities have ceased permanently.
c) The sale or termination has a material effect on the nature and focus of the reporting NHS Foundation
Trust's operations and represents a material reduction in its operating facilities resulting either from its
withdrawal from a particular activity or from a material reduction in income in the NHS Foundation Trust's
continuing operations.
d) The assets, liabilities, results of operations and activities are clearly distinguishable, physically, operationally
and for financial reporting purposes.
Operations not satisfying all these conditions are classified as continuing.
Activities are considered to be 'acquired' whether or not they are acquired from outside the public sector.

1.4

Income Recognition
Income is accounted for applying the accruals convention. The main source of income for the Trust is from
commissioners in respect of healthcare services provided under the Department of Health's Payment by
Results rules-based system and local agreements for non-mandatory tariff activity. Income is recognised in
the period in which services are provided.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that
income is deferred.
The Foundation Trust accrues income for incomplete spells of patient activity as at 31st March. The work in
progress is derived from patients admitted before the year end but not discharged as at 31st March. The
calculation is based on the number of bed days and the average specialty bed day price. The value as at 31st
March 2009 was £2.716m, an increase of £216k from 31st March 2008.
The provision for irrecoverable debts is based on outstanding debts greater than 6 months. The irrecoverable
debt provision figure is disclosed in note 13 - Debtors.
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1.5

Expenditure
Expenditure is accounted for applying the accruals convention.

1.6

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible assets are capitalised when they are capable of being used in a Trust's activities for more than one year;
they can be valued; and they have a cost of at least £5,000.
Intangible fixed assets held for operational use are valued at historical cost and are depreciated over the estimated
life of the asset (5 years) on a straight line basis, except capitalised Research and Development which is revalued
using an appropriate index figure. The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment at the end of
the first full year following acquisition and in other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable.
Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where expenditure of at least
£5,000 is incurred. They are amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and their useful economic life of
3 years.

1.7

Tangible fixed assets
i Capitalisation

Tangible assets are capitalised if they are capable of being used for a period which exceeds one year and they:
-

individually have a cost of at least £5,000; or

-

collectively have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are
functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have
simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or

-

form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit irrespective of their individual
or collective cost.

ii Valuation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at the lower of replacement cost and recoverable amount. On initial recognition
they are measured at cost (for leased assets, fair value) including any costs such as installation directly attributable
to bringing them into working condition. The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment in
periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The costs
arising from financing the construction of the fixed assets are not capitalised but are charged to the income and
expenditure account in the year to which they relate.
All land and buildings are restated to current value using professional valuations in accordance with FRS15 every
five years. A three year interim revaluation is also carried out.
Valuations are carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The last asset valuations were undertaken in 2004 as at the
prospective valuation date of 1 April 2005. The revaluation undertaken at that date was accounted for on 31 March
2005. An interim valuation was undertaken in 2009 as at the valuation date of 31 March 2009 and has been
accounted for on this date.
The interim revaluation resulted in a decrease of £6.531m in the value of land owned by the Trust and an overall
increase to buildings, dwellings and assets under construction net book value of £2.721m.
A decrease in value of certain buildings resulted in an impairment of £1.786m being charged to the income and
expenditure account (see Note 5.1). These buildings were Flats C, G and H, 134 Denmark Hill (£146k), the
Bessemer Wing (£352k), the Cheyne Wing (£1.093m) and the Ruskin Wing (£161k).
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The valuations are carried out primarily on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost for specialised
operational property and Existing Use Value for non-specialised operational property. The value of land for
existing use purposes is assessed at Existing Use Value. For non-operational properties including surplus
land, the valuations are carried out at Open Market Value.
Additional alternative Open Market Value figures have only been supplied for operational assets scheduled for
imminent closure and subsequent disposal.
All impairments resulting from price changes are charged to the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and
Losses. If the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the difference is taken to the
Income and Expenditure Account.
Assets in the course of construction are valued at cost and are valued by professional valuers as part of the
five or three year valuation or when brought into use.
Residual interests in off-balance sheet Private Finance Initiative properties are included in tangible fixed
assets as 'assets under construction and payments on account' where the PFI contract specifies the amount,
or nil value at which the assets will be transferred to the Trust at the end of the contract. The residual interest
is built up, on an actuarial basis, during the life of the contract by capitalising part of the unitary charge so that
at the end of the contract the balance sheet value of the residual value plus the specified amount equal the
expected fair value of the residual asset at the end of the contract. The estimated fair value of the asset on
reversion is determined by the District Valuer based on Department of Health guidance. The District Valuer
will provide an estimate of the anticipated fair value of the assets on the same basis as the District Valuer
values the NHS Foundation Trust's estate.
Operational equipment other than IT equipment, which is considered to have nil inflation, is valued at net
current replacement cost through annual uplift by the change in the value of the GDP deflator. Equipment
surplus to requirements is valued at net recoverable amount.
iii Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated at rates calculated to write them down to estimated residual value on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land and assets
surplus to requirements. Depreciation is calculated from the start of the month following the month in which the
asset first became available for use.
Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-balance sheet PFI contract assets are not
depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the Trust, respectively.
Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on their current value over the estimated remaining life of
the asset as advised by the District Valuer. Leaseholds are depreciated over the primary lease term.
Equipment is depreciated on current cost evenly over the useful economic life of the asset. Standard useful
economic lives are estimated for each major category of equipment and individual lives will only be applied
where it is clear that the standard lives are materially inappropriate. The major categories and their useful
economic lives are:
-

Short life engineering plant and equipment - 5 years
Medium life engineering plant and equipment - 10 years
Long life engineering plant and equipment - 15 years
Vehicles - 7 years
Furniture - 10 years
Office and IT equipment - 5 years
Soft furnishings - 7 years
Short life medical and other equipment - 5 years
Medium life medical equipment - 10 years
Long life medical equipment - 15 years
Mainframe-type IT installations - 8 years
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Fixed Asset impairments resulting from losses of economic benefits are charged to the Income and Expenditure
Account. All other impairments are taken to the revaluation reserve and reported in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses to the extent that there is a balance on the revaluation reserve in respect of the
particular asset.
1.8 Donated fixed assets
Donated fixed assets are capitalised at their current value on receipt and this value is credited to the Donated
Asset Reserve. Donated fixed assets are valued and depreciated as described above for purchased assets.
Gains and losses on revaluations are also taken to the Donated Asset Reserve and, each year, an amount equal
to the depreciation charge on the asset is released from the Donated Asset Reserve to the Income and
Expenditure account. Similarly, any impairment on donated assets charged to the Income and Expenditure
Account is matched by a transfer from the Donated Asset Reserve. On sale of donated assets, the value of the
sale proceeds is transferred from the Donated Asset Reserve to the Income and Expenditure Reserve.
1.9 Government Grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from primary care trusts or NHS trusts
for the provision of services. Grants from the Department of Health are accounted for as Government grants as
are grants from the Big Lottery Fund. Where the Government grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken
to the Income and Expenditure account to match that expenditure. Where the grant is used to fund capital
expenditure the grant is held as deferred income and released to the income and expenditure account over the life
of the asset on a basis consistent with the depreciation charge for that asset.
1.10 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
The NHS follows HM Treasury's Technical Note 1 (Revised) "How to Account for PFI transactions" which provides
definitive guidance for the application of the Application Note F to FRS 5.
PFI Schemes are schemes under which the PFI operator receives an annual payment from the Trust for the
services provided by the PFI operator.

Where the balance of the risks and rewards of ownership of the PFI property are borne by the PFI operator, the
PFI obligations are recorded as an operating expense. Where the trust has contributed land and buildings, a
prepayment for their fair value is recognised and amortised over the life of the PFI contract by charge to the
Income and Expenditure Account. Where, at the end of the PFI contract, a property reverts to the Trust, the
difference between the expected fair value of the residual on reversion and any agreed payment on reversion is
built up over the life of the contract by capitalising part of the unitary charge each year, as a tangible fixed asset.
Where the balance of risks and rewards of ownership of the PFI property are borne by the Trust, it is recognised
as a fixed asset along with the liability to pay for it which is accounted for as a finance lease. Contract payments
are apportioned between an imputed finance lease charge and a service charge.
1.11 Stocks and work-in-progress
Stocks and work-in-progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is considered to be a
reasonable approximation to current cost due to the high turnover of stocks. Work-in-progress comprises goods
in intermediate stages of production.
1.12 Liquid Resources
Deposits and other investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their
carrying amounts are treated as liquid resources in the cashflow statement.
1.13 Cash, bank and overdrafts
Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at the current values of these balances in the NHS Foundation
Trust's cash book. These balances exclude monies held in the NHS Foundation Trust's bank account belonging to
patients (see third party assets below). Account balances are only set off where a formal agreement has been
made with the bank to do so. In all other cases overdrafts are disclosed within creditors. Interest earned on bank
accounts and interest charged on overdrafts is recorded as, respectively, interest receivable and interest payable
in the periods to which they relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating expenditure in the periods to which
they relate.
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1.14 Research and development
Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised if it meets the following
criteria:
-

-

there is a clearly defined project;
the related expenditure is separately identifiable;
the outcome of the project has been assessed with reasonable certainty as to:
- its technical feasibility;
- its resulting in a product or service which will eventually be brought into use;
adequate resources exist, or are reasonably expected to be available, to enable the project to be
completed and to provide any consequential increases in working capital.

Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the
income and expenditure account on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It
is revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation charge is calculated on the same basis as used for
depreciation i.e. on a quarterly basis. Expenditure which does not meet the criteria for capitalisation is treated
as an operating cost in the year in which it is incurred. Where possible, NHS foundation trusts disclose the
total amount of research and development expenditure charged in the income and expenditure account
seperatly. However, where reasearch and development activity cannot be seperated from patient care activity
it cannot be identified and is therefore not sepreatly disclosed.
Fixed assets acquired for use in research and development are amortised over the life of the associated
project.
1.15 Provisions
The Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the balance
sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the
Treasury's discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.
i Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS Trust pays an
annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although the NHSLA
is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS
Foundation Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the
NHS Foundation Trust is disclosed at note 15.
Since financial responsibility for clinical negligence cases transferred to the NHSLA at 1 April 2002, the only
charge to operating expenditure in relation to clinical negligence in 2008/09 relates to the Trust's contribution
to the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts.
ii Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties
Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the NHS Foundation Trust pays an annual contribution
to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual
membership contributions, and any 'excesses' payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating
expenses as and when the liability arises.
1.16 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or
more future events not wholly within the entity's control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in
Note 22 where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Contingent liabilities are provided for where a transfer of economic benefits is probable. Otherwise, they are
not recognised, but are disclosed in Note 22 unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote.
Contingent liabilities are defined as:
- possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity's control; or
- present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
1.17 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the
benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at
www.pensions.nhsbsa.nhs.uk. The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS
employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in
England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify
their share of the underlying Scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it
were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period. The total employer contribution payable
in the year ended 31 March 2009 was £24,770,589 (31 March 2008: £22,618,699).
Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.
The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, based on a five year valuation
cycle), and a FRS17 accounting valuation every year. An outline of these follows:
i Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme
(taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid
by employers and scheme members. The last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was
undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and covered the period from 1 April 1999 to that date.

The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the Scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion
against the notional assets as at 31 March 2004. However, after taking into account the changes in the benefit
and contribution structure effective from 1 April 2008, the Scheme actuary reported that employer contributions
could continue at the existing rate of 14% of pensionable pay. On advice from the Scheme actuary, scheme
contributions may be varied from time to time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities. Up to 31 March
2008, the vast majority of employees paid contributions at the rate of 6% of pensionable pay. From 1 April
2008, employees contributions are on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending
on total earnings.
ii FRS17 Accounting valuation
In accordance with FRS17, a valuation of the Scheme liability is carried out annually by the Scheme Actuary
as at the balance sheet date by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation.
Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set is provided to
the Scheme Actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of the Scheme membership are
updated to allow the Scheme liability to be valued.
The valuation of the Scheme liability as at 31 March 2008, is based on detailed membership data as at 31
March 2006 (the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2008 with summary global member and accounting
data.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the Scheme is contained in the Scheme Actuary report, which forms
part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These
accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery
Office.
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Scheme provisions as at 31 March 2008
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th of the best of the last
3 years pensionable pay for each year of service. A lump sum normally equivalent to 3 years pension is
payable on retirement. Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions
(Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in
the previous calendar year. On death, a pension of 50% of the member’s pension is normally payable to the
surviving spouse.
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the Scheme who are permanently
incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s
pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement, less
pension already paid, subject to a maximum amount equal to twice the member’s final year’s pensionable pay
less their retirement lump sum for those who die after retirement, is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the income and expenditure
account at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.
The Scheme provides the opportunity to members to increase their benefits through money purchase
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) provided by an approved panel of life companies. Under the
arrangement the employee/member can make contributions to enhance an employee's pension benefits. The
benefits payable relate directly to the value of the investments made.
Scheme provisions from 1 April 2008

From 1 April 2008 changes have been made to the NHS Pension Scheme contribution rates and benefits.
Further details of these changes can be found on the NHS Pensions website www.pensions.nhsbsa.nhs.uk.
1.18 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax
does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is
charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.19 Taxation
The Finance Act 2004 amended S519A Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 provided power to the
Treasury to make certain non-core activities of Foundation Trusts potentially subject to corporation tax. This
legislation is effective from September 12 2005. Any outstanding payments of corporation tax as at the end of
the financial year are provided for in the Income and Expenditure Account.
The Foundation Trust incurred Corporation Tax of £9k through its commercial subsidiary organisations.
1.20 Foreign Exchange
Transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling
on the dates of the transactions. Resulting exchange gains and losses are taken to the Income and
Expenditure Account.
1.21 Third Party Assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the
accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, third party assets are disclosed in Note
28 to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual.
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1.22 Leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the NHS Foundation
Trust, the asset is recorded as a tangible fixed asset and a debt is recorded to the lessor of the minimum lease
payments discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
The interest element of the finance lease payment is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account over the
period of the lease at a constant rate in relation to the balance outstanding. Other leases are regarded as
operating leases and the rentals are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.
Phase II of the PFI scheme, the refurbishment of the Ruskin Wing, is subject to a finance lease and is deemed
to be on-balance sheet. The Ruskin Wing became operational on 1st May 2004 and the capital element of the
lease has been recorded as a tangible fixed asset for which depreciation will be charged to the Income and
Expenditure Account over the life of the asset. A creditor was raised for the capitalised amount of £15.9m,
which represents fair value of the asset at inception of the lease. The finance charge element of the lease
payments is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account over the period of the lease. This amounted to
£1,173k for the year to 31 March 2009. The capital element of the rental charge (£719k) is offset against the
opening creditor balance of £13.693m to leave a closing creditor balance of £12.974m as at 31 March 2009.
1.23 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC Dividend
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity based on the excess of assets over liabilities at
the time of establishment of the original NHS Trust.
A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the NHS Foundation Trust, is paid over as public
dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the
average relevant net assets of the NHS Foundation Trust. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of
all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for donated assets and cash held with the Office of the
Paymaster General. Average relevant net assets are calulated as a simple mean of opening and closing
relevant net assets. A note to the accounts discloses the rate that the dividend represents as a percentage of
the actual average carrying amount of assets less liabilities in the year.
1.24 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and Special Payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds
for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They
are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are
divided into different categories, which govern the way each individual case is handled.
Losses and Special Payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in the Income and Expenditure
Account on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover
had NHS Foundation Trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as
normal revenue expenditure). Note 29 is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which
is prepared on a cash basis.
1.25 Financial Instruments
i Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial
items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale
or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or
delivery of the goods or services is made.
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Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described above.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
ii De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cashflows from the assets have expired or the
Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
iii Classification and Measurement
Financial assets are categorised as Loans and receivables or ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’.
Financial liabilities are classified as 'Fair Value through Income and Expenditure' or as 'Other Financial
liabilities'.
iv Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments with are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.
The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash at bank and in hand, NHS debtors, accrued income and
‘other debtors’.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured
subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the income
and expenditure account.
v Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in long-term assets unless the Trust
intends to dispose of them within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction costs, and
measured subsequently at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves. When items classified as
‘available-for-sale’ are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in reserves are
included in the income and expenditure account.
vi Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts exactly estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and
charged to the income and expenditure account.
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vii Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are determined using
discounted cash flow analysis.
viii Impairment of financial assets
At the balance sheet date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value
through income and expenditure’ is impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are
recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cashflows of
the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account and the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of a bad debt provision.
1.26 Consolidated Accounts
The Trust has a wholly owned subsidiary company, KCH Commercial Services Ltd, who wholly own Agnentis
Ltd. The accounts for this company have been consolidated into the Foundation Trust annual accounts. They
are not shown separately in the segmental analysis note to the accounts (note 2) as the figures were
immaterial.
1.27 Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are accounting standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The Treasury has since announced that public sector bodies (including
NHS Foundation Trusts) will be required to follow IFRS from 2009-10. IFRS will not lead to a fundamental
change in the way the Trust accounts are produced, but there are key changes between UKGAAP and IFRS
that will lead to the following accounting changes in the following areas:
• Leases
• Fixed Assets
• Private Finance Initiatives (PFI)
• Consolidation of Charitable Funds
• Segmental Reporting
• Financial Instruments
• Employee Benefits

2 Segmental Analysis
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has only one business segment being the provision of
healthcare. The Trust does provide Research and Development and Training and Education services within
the healthcare sector. They do not have a material impact and therefore do not require seperate reporting.
Note 4 entitled "Other Operating Income" discloses the relevant income figures for these services.
The Trust also generated income from its King's subsiduary commercial company of £517k, generating a
surplus of £25k.
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3 Income from Activities
3.1 Income from activities

NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
Strategic Health Authorities
Primary Care Trusts
Department of Health - Grants
Department of Health - Other
NHS Other
Non NHS: - Private patients
- Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
- NHS Injury Scheme*
- Other

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

479
637
23,691
348,451
0
52,934
558
14,115
608
1,099
470

132
280
20,566
311,926
0
48,936
542
11,658
327
1,787
527

443,042

396,681

* NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 7.8% to reflect expected rates of collection. The total
outstanding claims against this scheme at 31 March 2009 were £3.455m, and a provision of £269k was raised against this amount.
Non-NHS other income includes patient care provided to devolved administrations and services to prisons.

3.2 Income from activities by patient type

Elective income
Non-elective income
Outpatient income
Other NHS clinical income
A & E income
Private patient income

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

89,229
100,362
67,410
159,513
12,413
14,115

85,841
92,542
56,258
139,106
11,276
11,658

443,042

396,681

Other types of activity income includes National Screening, Direct Access, Community Services including Midwifery, IVF,
Rehabilitation, Cystic Fibrosis, Elderly Day, Audiological Services, Physiotherapy sessions and CITEC funding.

3.3 Private patient income

Private patient income
Total patient related income
Proportion (as a percentage)

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

14,115
443,042

11,658
399,802

3.19%

2.92%

Section 44 of the 2006 Act requires that the proportion of private patient income to the total patient related income of the NHS
Foundation Trust should not exceed 3.5 per cent, its proportion when the organisation was an NHS Trust in 2002/03.

4 Other Operating Income

Research and development
Education and training
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Transfers from donated asset reserve
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other income

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

7,630
44,414
1,319
507
12,346
8,260

9,592
45,016
1,171
630
11,312
7,006

74,476

74,727

Other income includes Clinical Excellence Awards, Staff Nursery, Car Parking, Accommodation and Shop Rents.
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5 Operating Expenses
5.1 Operating expenses comprise:

Services from Foundation Trusts
Services from other NHS Trusts
Services from other NHS bodies
Executive directors' costs
Non-executive directors' costs
Staff costs
Drugs
Supplies and services - clinical
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Bad debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Fixed asset impairment
Audit services - statutory audit
Other auditor's remuneration
Clinical negligence
Other

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

444
1,812
4,680
1,198
125
296,060
49,117
48,574
2,586
4,070
4,342
16,460
1,131
10,286
1,786
81
20
5,144
44,810

412
1,220
5,112
1,314
119
268,317
42,058
44,993
1,918
3,306
3,870
16,906
1,018
14,757
2,805
75
2
4,232
37,882

492,726

450,316

Other operating expenses includes expenditure on PFI service costs, leasing costs, training and legal fees.

5.2 Operating leases
5.2.1 Operating expenses include:

Hire of plant and machinery
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

5,496
8,491

4,494
7,499

13,987

11,993

5.2.2 Annual commitments under non - cancellable operating leases are:
Land and buildings

Operating leases which expire:
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years
After 5 years

Other leases

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

0
1,080
7,952

26
114
7,359

421
4,280
812

1,200
4,626
616

9,032

7,499

5,513

6,442

Page 96

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2008/2009

5.3 Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers
A) Remuneration
2007/2008

2008/2009

Name

Title

Chariman and Non-Executive Directors
M. Parker
Chairman
M. James
Non-Executive Director
R. Foster
Non-Executive Director
A. McGregor
Non-Executive Director
R. Donaghy
Non-Executive Director
M. West
Non-Executive Director
Executive Directors
M. Lowe-Lauri
T. Smart
J. Docherty
J. Docherty
J. Moxham
S. Taylor
M. Griffin
J. Watson
P. Townsend

Chief Executive
Chief Executive
Director of Operations & Nursing
Acting Chief Executive
Director of Medicine
Director of Finance & ISD
Director of Human Resources
Acting Director of Operations
Acting Director of Nursing

Co-opted members of the Trusts Board
A. Toumadj
Director of Facilities
J. Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs
R. Sinker
Director of Strategic Development
Z. Lelliott
Acting Director of Strategic Development

M.Lowe-Lauri
T. Smart
J. Docherty
J. Docherty
M. Griffin
J. Watson
P. Townsend
R. Sinker
Z. Lelliott

Chief Executive
Chief Executive
Director of Operations & Nursing
Acting Chief Executive
Director of Human Resources
Acting Director of Operations
Acting Director of Nursing
Director of Strategic Development
Acting Director of Strategic Development

Other
Salary
Remuneration
Benefits in Kind
(bands of £5000) (bands of £5000) Rounded to the
£000
£000
nearest £100

Salary
(bands of £5000)
£000

Other
Remuneration
(bands of £5000)
£000

Benefits in Kind
Rounded to the
nearest £100

50 - 55
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15

0
0
0
85 - 90
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

50 - 55
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
5 - 10

0
0
0
85 - 90
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

30 - 35
90 - 95
165 - 170
20 - 25
55 - 60
140 - 145
125 - 130
5 - 10
5 - 10

0
0
0
0
100 - 105
10 - 15
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

195 - 200
0
145 - 150
0
35 - 40
120 - 125
115 - 120
0
0

0
0
0
0
95 - 100
10 - 15
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

130 - 135
90 - 95
115 - 120
5 - 10

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

130 - 135
95 - 100
235 - 240
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

01 April 2008 - 05 May 2008
01 November 2008 - 31 March 2009
01 April 2008 - 23 February 2009
05 May 2008 - 31 October 2008
01 April 2008 - 31 March 2009
23 February 2009 - 31 March 2009
23 February 2009 - 31 March 2009
01 April 2008 - 18 December 2008
16 February 2009 - 31 March 2009

R. Sinker was employed through an external agency as Joint Strategy Director with Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust until 18th December 2008. His salary banding reflects total
payments made by the Trust to the agency for his services in this role. From the 18th of December 2008, R. Sinker has been employed by King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and
by honorary contract with Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust and King's College London as Transitional Strategy Director of
King's Health Partners.
M. West's role as Non-Executive Director is charged to the Trust through his employing organisation.

B) Pension Benefits
This pensions information is provided by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division on an annual basis.

Name

Title

Total accrued
Real Increase in
pension and
related lump sum
pension and
related lump sum at age 60 at 31
March 2009
at age 60 (bands
of £2,500)
(bands of £2,500)
£000
£000

Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent Real increase in
Transfer Value at Transfer Value at Cash Equivalent
31 March 2009
31 March 2008
Transfer Value
£000
£000
£000

Executive Directors
M. Lowe-Lauri
Chief Executive
T. Smart
Chief Executive
Director of Operations & Nursing and
J. Docherty
Acting Chief Executive Officer
J. Moxham
Director of Medicine
S. Taylor
Director of Finance & ISD
M. Griffin
Director of Human Resources
J. Watson
Acting Director of Operations
P. Townsend
Acting Director of Nursing

42.5 - 45.0
0.0 - 2.5
10.0 - 12.5

315.0 - 317.5
0.0 - 2.5
180.0 - 182.5

1,570
18
1,129

1,028
0
745

362
12
256

7.5 - 10.0
27.5 - 30.0
7.5 - 10.0
15.0 - 17.5
22.5 - 25.0

322.5 - 325.0
155.0 - 157.5
92.5 - 95.0
15.0 - 17.5
22.5 - 25.0

0
680
0
77
106

0
427
0
0
0

0
170
0
54
74

Co-opted members of the Trusts Board
A. Toumadj
Director of Facilities
J. Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs
Z. Lelliott
Acting Director of Strategic Development

10.0 - 12.5
7.5 - 10.0
27.5 - 30.0

120.0 - 122.5
122.5 - 125.0
27.5 - 30.0

0
713
66

0
506
0

0
136
46

T. Smart is a new pension scheme member and has no accrued lump sum.
As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued
are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown
relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure
applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS
pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost.
CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
The real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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6 Staff costs and numbers
6.1 Staff costs
Permanently
Employed
£000

Other

2008/2009
Total

2007/2008
Total

£000

£000

£000

243,687
18,913
24,771
713

0
0
0
0
9,174

243,687
18,913
24,771
713
9,174

222,170
17,745
22,619
700
6,397

288,084

9,174

297,258

269,631

2008/2009
Total
Number

2007/2008
Total
Number

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Other

1,033
1,347
546
1,921
6
1,199
3
6

977
1,273
439
1,873
6
1,112
3
6

Total

6,061

5,689

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

24,101
517,518
4.66%

20,846
471,408
4.42%

Salaries and wages
Social Security Costs
Employer contributions to NHS Pension Scheme
Other pension costs
Agency and contract staff

6.2 Average number of persons employed

6.3 Management costs

Management costs
Income
Management costs as a percentage

Management
costs
are
defined
as
those
on
the
management
costs
website
at
www.dh.gov.uk/PolicyAndGuidance/OrganisationPolicy/FinanceAndPlanning/NHSManagementCosts/fs/en..
The
general rule is that if a post falls within the Board or Corporate functions, the salary cost of all staff must be included.
Only the most senior manager must be included within clinical and operational or support functions. These costs are
also applied to contracted out services and management consultancy services.

6.4 Retirements due to ill-health
During the year to 31 March 2009 there were 3 (2007/08: 3) early retierments from the NHS Trust on the grounds of illhealth. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £113,107 (2007/08: £146,564).
The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by NHS Pensions.
These retirements represented 0.47 (2007/08: 0.55) per 1000 active scheme members.
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7 Better Payment Practice Code
7.1

Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance

2008/2009
Number
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target

£000

2007/2008
Number

£000

106,991
87,187
81%

214,044
184,430
86%

97,438
69,742
72%

167,352
129,557
77%

2,966
1,231
42%

51,202
35,563
69%

2,541
954
38%

45,474
25,571
56%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Foundation Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within
30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

7.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

Interest Payable arising from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

8 Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - protected

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

4
5
9

0
1
1

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

25

0

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

210
0
1,173

0
163
1,173

1,383

1,336

9 Interest Payable

Loans from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Overdrafts
Finance leases
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10 Intangible Fixed Assets
Software
licences
£000

Development
expenditure
£000

Total
£000

Gross cost at 31 March 2008
Other revaluation
Additions purchased
Gross cost at 31 March 2009

1,143
0
624
1,767

636
17
0
653

1,779
17
624
2,420

Amortisation at 31 March 2008
Provided during the year
Other revaluation
Amortisation at 31 March 2009

784
241
0
1,025

244
134
7
385

1,028
375
7
1,410

Net book value
- Purchased at 31 March 2008
- Donated at 31 March 2008
- Total at 31 March 2008

359
0
359

392
0
392

751
0
751

Net book value
- Purchased at 31 March 2009
- Donated at 31 March 2009
- Total at 31 March 2009

742
0
742

268
0
268

1,010
0
1,010

The implementation cost of the Activity Based Costing (ABC) project completed in 2006/07 was capitalised
under SSAP 13 as Research and Development costs. ABC was been introduced as a result of the
implementation of Payments by Results using the National Tariff.
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11 Tangible Fixed Assets
11.1 Tangible fixed assets at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction

Plant and
machinery

Information
technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

54,921
0
0
(34)
0
(6,497)
0

171,085
1,886
22
(2,996)
11,978
365
0

3,573
0
0
0
0
(37)
0

6,362
17,001
860
0
(11,978)
0
0

31,080
6,145
0
0
0
812
(810)

16,785
501
0
0
0
0
0

491
184
0
0
0
13
0

284,297
25,717
882
(3,030)
0
(5,344)
(810)

48,390

182,340

3,536

12,245

37,227

17,286

688

301,712

Provided during the year
Impairments
Reversal of Impairments
Reclassifications
Other revaluations
Disposals

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

784
6,222
(1,244)
0
0
(4,035)
0

0
112
0
0
0
(112)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

16,830
2,478
0
0
0
427
(614)

14,094
1,049
0
0
0
0
0

160
50
0
0
0
4
0

31,868
9,911
(1,244)
0
0
(3,716)
(614)

Depreciation at 31 March 2009

0

1,727

0

0

19,121

15,143

214

36,205

Net book value
- Purchased at 31 March 2008
- Donated at 31 March 2008

52,454
2,467

157,962
12,339

3,195
378

3,540
2,822

13,557
693

2,614
77

327
4

233,649
18,780

- Total at 31 March 2008

54,921

170,301

3,573

6,362

14,250

2,691

331

252,429

- Purchased at 31 March 2009
- Donated at 31 March 2009

46,276
2,114

166,193
14,420

3,169
367

11,075
1,170

17,453
653

2,085
58

471
3

246,722
18,785

- Total at 31 March 2009

48,390

180,613

3,536

12,245

18,106

2,143

474

265,507

Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2008
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Other revaluations
Disposals

Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2009

Depreciation at 31 March 2008

Net book value

The residual interest of the Golden Jubilee Wing off-balance sheet PFI scheme is £32.8million (See Note 26.1)

11.2 Tangible Fixed Assets
Of the totals at 31 March 2009, £nil (31 March 2008: £nil) related to dwellings valued at open market value.

The net book value of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts at the balance sheet date are as follows:

£000
11,513
12,499

Buildings, excluding dwellings - at 31 March 2008
Buildings, excluding dwellings - at 31 March 2009
The total amount of depreciation charged to the income and expenditure in respect of assets held under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts:

£000
452
362

Buildings, excluding dwellings - depreciation 31 March 2008
Buildings, excluding dwellings - depreciation 31 March 2009

11.3 The net book value of land, buildings and dwellings at 31 March 2009 comprises:

Protected
£000

Unprotected
£000

31 March 2009
Total
£000

31 March 2008
Total
£000

226,029
3,245

3,265
0

229,294
3,245

225,516
3,279

229,274

3,265

232,539

228,795

31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

Raw materials and consumables

9,433

8,673

TOTAL

9,433

8,673

Freehold
Long leasehold

12. Stocks and Work in Progress

Page 101

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2008/2009

13 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:
NHS debtors
Provision for impaired debts
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other debtors
Sub Total
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
NHS debtors
Other debtors
Sub Total
TOTAL

31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

22,200
(2,533)
1,819
3,236
13,257
37,979

15,616
(2,024)
1,432
2,739
11,928
29,691

2,464
2,554
5,018

2,519
2,439
4,958

42,997

34,649

The NHS Debtor falling due after more than one year (and £115,000 included NHS debtors falling due within one year) reflect
agreements with commissioners to cover creditors for early retirements and their related unwinding of discount.

14 Creditors
14.1 Creditors at the balance sheet date are made up of:
31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Loans
Payments received on account
NHS creditors
Corporation tax payable
Tax and social security costs
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Capital creditors
Other creditors
Accruals
Deferred income
Sub Total

4,637
2,764
10,877
9
6,459
722
2,076
12,614
17,350
1,919
59,427

0
578
11,991
0
6,043
719
707
18,465
11,501
1,033
51,037

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Loans
NHS creditors
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Sub Total

4,756
587
12,252
17,595

0
0
12,974
12,974

TOTAL

77,022

64,011

31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2008
£000

1,895
7,960
35,970

1,892
8,316
37,509

45,825

47,717

(32,851)

(34,024)

12,974

13,693

NHS Creditors include £177,965 outstanding pensions contributions at 31 March 2009.

14.2 Finance lease obligations

Payable:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

Less finance charges allocated to future periods

The finance lease obligations relate to the Ruskin Wing on-balance sheet PFI scheme (see note 26.2)
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14.3 Loans

Payments of loan principal and interest falling due:
within one year
between one to two years
between two and five years
After five years

31 March
2009
£000

31 March
2008
£000

4,710
253
759
3,671

0
0
0
0

9,393

0

15 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Pensions
relating to
other staff
£000

Legal claims

Equal Pay
Claims

Other

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

At 31 March 2008
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

9,918
0
(713)
(31)
202

313
53
(5)
(58)
0

300
0
0
(300)
0

2,621
468
(2,621)
0
0

13,152
521
(3,339)
(389)
202

At 31 March 2009

9,376

303

0

468

10,147

Expected timing of cashflows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

713
2,850
5,813

303
0
0

0
0
0

468
0
0

1,484
2,850
5,813

Clinical Negligence
£39,922,587 is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2009 in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the
trust. The NHS Litigation Authority is carrying provisions with a value of £794,468 in relation to ELS and £39,128,119 in relation to CNST
for King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. The ELS (Existing Liabilities Scheme) was superceded by the CNST (Clinical
Negligence Scheme for Trusts).
Pensions
The measure of the Trust's pension liability for early retired staff was recalculated in 2001/02. The NHS Pension Agency capitalisation
tables for the NHS Pension Scheme were used to determine the full liability rather than using the average retirement age of the
employees minus average current cost of these employees.
Legal Claims
The provision is based upon information provided by the NHS Litigation Authority and refers to non-clinical claims against the Trust (e.g.
Public and Employers Liability cases)
Other
The Foundation Trust has provided £316k for outstanding pay awards for Sodexho staff and additional provisions have been made for
Speciality Doctor's regrading (£33k), retrospective salary costs (£68k) and legal costs (£50k).
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16 Movements in taxpayers' equity
2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2008

245,426

202,237

Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year
Public dividend capital dividends
Deficit from revaluations of fixed assets
New public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid in year
Other movements in Public Dividend Capital
Additions to donated asset reserve
Additions to other reserves

24,401
(8,740)
0
5,987
0
0
5
(1,415)

20,547
(7,882)
0
1,476
0
474
3,179
25,395

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2009

265,664

245,426

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

122,065

120,115

5,987
0
0

1,476
0
474

128,052

122,065

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve
£000

Total

£000

Donated
Asset
Reserve
£000

81,082

18,780

23,499

123,361

0

0

15,661

15,661

(1,248)

(370)

0

(1,618)

0

882

0

882

(167)

0

0

(167)

0

(507)

0

(507)

(346)

0

346

0

79,321

18,785

39,506

137,612

17 Movement in Public Dividend Capital

Public Dividend Capital at 1 April 2008
New Public Capital Dividend Received
Public Dividend Capital repaid in year
Other movements in Public Dividend Capital
Public Dividend Capital as at 31 March 2009

18 Movements on Reserves
Movements on reserves in the period comprised the following:
Revaluation
Reserve

At 1 April 2008
Transfer from the income and expenditure account

Loss on other revaluations/indexation of fixed assets
Receipt of donated assets
Transfer of realised losses to the income and
expenditure account
Transfers to the income and expenditure account for
depreciation of donated assets
Other transfers between reserves
At 31 March 2009

£000

The other transfers between reserves relates to the identification of negative reserves on fixed assets which have been
transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the Income and Expenditure Reserve.
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19 Notes to the cash flow Statement
19. 1 Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash flow from operating activities:
2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

Total operating surplus
Depreciation and amortisation charge
Fixed asset impairments
Transfer from donated asset reserve
(Increase) in stocks
Decrease in debtors
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors
Increase in provisions

24,792
10,286
1,786
(507)
(760)
(9,662)
2,964
(3,207)

21,092
14,757
2,805
(630)
(1,266)
485
7,607
2,178

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities

25,692

47,028

2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

Increase/(Decrease) in cash in the period
Cash inflow from new debt
Cash outflow from debt repaid and finance lease capital payments
Change in net funds/(debt) resulting from cash flows
Net funds/(debt) at 1 April 2008

7,799
(9,183)
719
(665)
12,394

24,939
0
645
25,584
(13,190)

Net funds/(debt) at 31 March 2009

11,729

12,394

£000

Cash changes in
year
£000

At 31 March
2009
£000

20,218
5,869
0
0
(13,693)

9,466
(1,667)
(4,500)
(4,683)
719

29,684
4,202
(4,500)
(4,683)
(12,974)

12,394

(665)

11,729

19.2 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

19.3 Analysis of changes in net debt
At 1 April 2008

Cash at Office of the Paymaster General
Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Debt due within one year
Debt due after one year
Finance leases
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20 Capital Commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at 31 March 2009 were £10.228million (31 March 2008:
£1.350m).
These contracts comprise the completion of the New Energy Centre (£7.919m), the refurbishment of Unit 7,
129 Coldharbour Lane (£936k), the Virology, Microbiology, Molecular Pathology and Histopatholgy
refurbishment projects (£773k), the Dental Institute Front Entrance and 3rd and 4th floor refurbishment
(£463k), Children's Critical Care Centre and lift refurbishment (£61k), the relocation of the Computer Suite
to Unit 5 (£30k), the completion of the Mountbatten Ward and Procedure Room refurbishment (£23k), the
Ruskin Wing Main Entrance project (£10k), the 4th Neuro Theatre (£11k) and the Liver Outpatients
refurbishment project (£3k).
It is anticipated that all these projects will be completed in the next financial year.

21 Post Balance Sheet Events
There are no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts. (31 March 2008: there
were no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts.)

22 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities
Amounts recoverable against contingent liabilities
Net value of contingent liabilities

31 March
2009
£000
(115)
58

31 March
2008
£000
(133)
58

(57)

(75)

The above contingencies refer to non-clinical legal claims, dealt with by the NHS Litigation Authority on
behalf of the Trust.
In common with many other Trusts, it is possible that other claims could arise in the future due to incidents
which have already occurred. The future expenditure which may arise from such incidents cannot be
determined until such time as a claim is formally made.
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23 Public Dividend Capital Dividend
The Foundation Trust is required to demonstrate that the PDC Dividend paid is in line with the forecast rate of 3.5 per cent of average
relevant net assets. This is an annual calculation and for the financial year 2008/09 the overall performance of the Foundation Trust was 4.1
per cent (4.0 per cent: 2007/08). This was calculated using the dividend paid for the year of £8,740,000 (£7,882,000: 2007/08) divided by the
average relevant net assets of £211,811,000 (£196,220,000: 2007/08).
The variance from the 3.5% arises due to slippage of the anticipated start and completion dates of capital projects.

24 Financial performance targets
The NHS Foundation Trust is required to comply and remain within a prudential borrowing limit.
This is made up of two elements:
i the maximum cumulative amount of long-term borrowing that enable the NHSFT to remain within the limit set by Monitor.
This is set by reference to the five ratio tests set out in Monitor's Prudential Borrowing Code. The financial risk rating set under Monitor's
Compliance Framework determines one of the ratios and therefore can impact on the long-term borrowing limit.

The Foundation Trust has a prudential borrowing limit of £98m in 2008/09 (£48.4m in 2007/08). The Foundation Trust actually borrowed
£8.464m in 2008/09 (repaid £645k in 2007/08) and at 31 March 2009 had £22.157m of outstanding borrowing (£13.693m at 31 March 2008).

Actual Ratio
2008/09

Approved PBL
ratios
2008/09

Actual Ratio
2007/08

Approved PBL
ratios
2007/08

8.34%

<40%

5.57%

<15%

Minimum dividend cover

4.0

>1x

4.5

>1x

Minimum interest cover

25.3

>3x

31.3

>3x

Minimum debt service cover

16.8

>2x

20.2

>2x

0.41%

<3%

0.39%

<3%

Financial Ratio
Maximum debt/capital ratio

Minimum debt service to revenue

The approved PBL threshold ratios refer to the Foundation Trust's annual risk rating of 5 (2007/08: 3).

ii the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.
The Trust has an actual and approved working capital facility of £25m (£25m in 2007/08). The Trust had not drawn down any of its working
capital facility at 31 March 2009 (£0 at 31 March 2008).
Further information on the NHS Foundation Trust Prudential Borrowing Code and Compliance Framework can be found on the website of
Monitor, the Independent Regulator of Foundation Trusts.
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25 Related Party Transactions
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for
Health.
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year King's College Hospital NHS Trust has had a
significant number of material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is
regarded as the parent Department.
The main local commissioners are Lambeth PCT, Southwark PCT and Lewisham PCT. Additionally the Trust has
transacted with a large number of other PCTs and NHS Trusts as well as the NHS Litigation Authority and NHS
Purchasing and Supply Agency. The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable
funds, principally the King's College Hospital Charitable Trust.

Department of Health
London Strategic Health Authority
Southwark PCT
Lambeth PCT
Lewisham PCT
Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust
King's College Hospital Charitable Trust

Payments to
Related Party

Receipts from
Related Party

Amounts
Owed to
Related Party

Amounts due
from Related
Party

£000

£000

£000

£000

46
5
1,002
95
6
1,014
1

59,914
67,705
107,721
64,859
30,366
1,799
2,249

17
145
919
56
0
388
0

557
2,615
4,492
1,183
1,724
1,281
183

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other central
and local Government bodies. There were also many transactions with King's College London in respect of education,
training and research and development.
During the year none of the Board Members, the Foundation Trust's Governers, members of the key management staff or
parties related to them has undertaken any material transactions with King's College Hospital NHS Trust.
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26 Private Finance Transactions
26.1 PFI schemes deemed to be off-balance sheet
2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

10,743

10,331

Amortisation of PFI deferred asset

0

0

Net charge to operating expenses

10,743

10,331

0
0
0
0
0
0
10,758
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
10,743
0

Golden Jubilee Wing
Amounts included within operating expenses in respect of PFI transactions deemed
to be off-balance sheet - gross

The NHS Trust is committed to make the following payments during the next year.
PFI scheme which expires;
Within one year
2nd to 5th years (inclusive)
6th to 10th years (inclusive)
11th to 15th years (inclusive)
16th to 20th years (inclusive)
21st to 25th years (inclusive)
26th to 30th years (inclusive)
31st to 35th years (inclusive)

The estimated annual payments in future years are not expected to be materially different from those which the trust is
committed to make during the next year.
£000
65,157

Estimated capital value of the PFI scheme
Contract Start date:
Contract End date:

1 April 2000
31 March 2038

The project enables the centralisation of acute services in new and refurbished buildings on the Denmark Hill site
following the transfer of services from Dulwich Hospital and Mapother House. The construction and provision of sitewide catering, domestic and portering services will be undertaken by Hpc (King's College Hospital) Plc. The project is
being financed by means of a wrapped, index linked bond guaranteed by MBIA-AMBAC and debt and equity capital
provided by Costain, Skanska, Sodexho and Edison Capital. The contract period is 38 years including the construction
phase. Annual payments by the Trust will be dependent on availability and service quality standards being met by the
contract. Phase 1 of the PFI scheme, the construction and management of a new clinical wing, is subject to an
operating lease between HpC Plc and the Trust.
The official name of the new PFI building is the 'Golden Jubilee Wing', and was made available to the Trust in
September 2002.
The building will transfer to the Trust at the end of the contract for £0. The expected fair value of the residual is
estimated at £32.8million. The difference will be built up over the life of the contract in order to ensure a proper
allocation of payments made between the cost of services under contract and the acquisition of the residual.

The total cost of services were £11,320k for the period to 31 March 2009. £10,743k was included within the revenue
operating expenses of the Trust and the remaining £577k capitalised in relation to the residual value of the PFI asset.
The estimated cost of the availability fee for 2009/10 will be £7,276k and for the service provision £3,482k.
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26.2 'Service' element of PFI schemes deemed to be on-balance sheet
2008/2009
£000

2007/2008
£000

11,239

10,827

Amortisation of PFI deferred asset

0

0

Net charge to operating expenses

11,239

10,827

31 March
2009
£000
1,895
7,960
35,970
45,825
(32,851)
12,974

31 March
2008
£000
1,892
8,316
37,509
47,717
(34,024)
13,693

£000

£000

0
0
0
0
0
0
11,396
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
11,239
0

Ruskin Wing
Amounts included within operating expenses in respect of the 'service' element of
PFI schemes deemed to be on-balance sheet

Imputed finance lease obligations comprise;

Rentals due within 1 year
Rentals due within 2 to 5 years
Rentals due after 5 years
Sub total
Less: interest element
TOTAL

The Trust is committed to make the following service payments during the next year.

PFI scheme which expires;
Within one year
2nd to 5th years (inclusive)
6th to 10th years (inclusive)
11th to 15th years (inclusive)
16th to 20th years (inclusive)
21st to 25th years (inclusive)
26th to 30th years (inclusive)
31st to 35th years (inclusive)

The estimated annual payments in future years are not expected to be materially different from those which the
Trust is committed to make during the next year.
Phase II of the PFI scheme, the refurbishment of the existing Ruskin Wing, is subject to a finance lease between
HpC Plc and the Trust. As part of the total scheme, HpC assumed responsibility for the provision of site-wide
catering, domestic and portering services from April 2000.
The fixed asset has a net book value as at 31 March 2009 of £12.499m.
The cost of these services were £11,239k for the period to 31 March 2009 and they were included within the
revenue operating expenses of the Trust. The expected cost for 2009/10 is £11,396k.
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27 Financial Instruments
Financial reporting standard 29 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the
risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Foundation Trust has with
Primary Care Trusts and the way those Primary Care Trusts are financed, the NHS Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial
risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of
listed companies, to which these standards mainly apply. The NHS Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS
Foundation Trust in undertaking its activities.
The Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within
the Foundation Trust’s Standing Financial Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Foundation Trust treasury activity is
subject to review by the Trust’s internal auditors.
Liquidity risk
The Foundation Trust’s net operating costs are incurred under annual service agreements with Primary Care Trusts, which are financed from
resources voted annually by Parliament. The Foundation Trust also largely finances its capital expenditure from funds made available from
Government under an agreed borrowing limit. King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity
risks.
Interest-Rate Risk
52% of the Foundation Trust's financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of interest. King's College Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest-rate risk. The two tables belwo show the interest rate profiles of the
Foundation Trust's financial assets and liabilities.
Currency Risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and Sterling based.
The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Credit Risk
Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The
maximum exposures as at 31 March 2009 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the Debtors note (Note 13).

27.1 Financial Assets
Fixed rate

Weighted
average
interest
rate
%

Weighted
average
period for
which fixed
Years

Noninterest
bearing
weighted
average
term
Years

Total
£000

Floating
rate
£000

Fixed rate
£000

Noninterest
bearing
£000

At 31 March 2009
Sterling
Gross financial assets

69,521
69,521

33,886
33,886

2,579
2,579

33,056
33,056

3.30%

unlimited

0

At 31 March 2008
Sterling
Gross financial assets

54,720
54,720

26,087
26,087

2,638
2,638

25,995
25,995

5.00%

unlimited

0

Currency

27.2 Financial Liabilities
Fixed rate

Weighted
average
interest
rate
%

Weighted
average
period for
which fixed
Years

Noninterest
bearing
weighted
average
term
Years

Total
£000

Floating
rate
£000

Fixed rate
£000

Noninterest
bearing
£000

At 31 March 2009
Sterling
Gross financial liabilities

74,632
74,632

0
0

32,514
32,514

42,118
42,118

1.50%

unlimited

0

At 31 March 2008
Sterling
Gross financial liabilities

69,213
69,213

0
0

23,611
23,611

45,602
45,602

3.10%

unlimited

0

Currency
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27.3 Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust has no/negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.

27.4 Fair Values
Set out below is a comparison, by category, of book values and fair values of the NHS Trust's financial assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2009.
Book Value Fair Value
Basis of
fair
valuation
Financial assets
Cash
Debtors over 1 year:
- Agreements with commissioners to cover creditors and provisions
Total
Financial liabilities
Creditors over 1 year:
- Finance leases
Provisions under contract
Loans
Total

£000

£000

33,885

33,885

2,464
36,349

2,464
36,349

Note a

12,252
10,147
4,756
27,155

11,781
10,147
4,756
26,684

Note b
Note c

Notes

a These debtors reflect agreements with commissioners to cover creditors over 1 year for early retirements and
provisions under contract, and their related interest charge/unwinding of discount. In line with note c, below, fair
value is not significantly different from book value.
b To obtain fair value, cash flows have been discounted at prevailing market interest rates for finance leases for a
similar term.
c Fair value is not significantly different from book value since, in the calculation of book value, the expected cash
flows have been discounted by the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.
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28 Third Party Assets
The Trust held £4,770 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2009 (£4,806 at 31 March 2008) which relates to monies
held by the NHS Trust on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from cash at bank and in hand figure reported in
the accounts.

29 Losses and Special Payments
There were 655 cases of losses and special payments (212 cases in 2007/08) totalling £688,071 (£807,207 in 2007/08)
paid during the year ending 31 March 2009.
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